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Hardys & Hansons are award-winning brewers and pub owners
with local heritage, brewing in Nottingham since 1832.

Owning over 250 great pubs with friendly staff providing
excellent service, quality drinks and food, their mission is to be
first choice locally.

H&H brew and supply their own ales and market a variety of leading
brand lagers, wines, spirits and soft drinks io the free trade in
addition to their own estafe.
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Financial Highlights

» Turnover increased 7% to £81.5m

* Operating profit decreased 1% to £14.3m

* Adjusted profit before tax decreased 3% to £14.8m*
* Adjusted EPS decreased 3% to 40.6p%

* Total dividend per ordinary share increased by 2% 1o 19.4p

e Capital expenditure of £24.5m in 2005

* Directors’ valuation of property assets of £181.5m indicates o
£64.6m excess over book value

* see note 10

TURNOVER {£m)

543 648 709 7462

01 02 03 04 03

T sea note 11

ADJUSTED OPERATING
PROFIT (£m)

102 123 137 145

01 02 03 04 05

ADJUSTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE {pence}

302 3446 392 429

1 02 03 04 05

NET ASSETS (£m)

95 104 113 120

01 02 03 04 035
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Chairman’s Statement

After five years of sustained sales and profit
growth, trading was more difficult in 2005,
with results for the financial year ended

30 September 2005 marginally balew

the previcus year. As forecast in the trading
statement dated 7 QOctober 2005, a
combination of cost increases and a
deterioration in like for like trading in the
second helf led 1o o 1% reduction in
opercting profitfo £14.3m (2004: £74.5m].
Driven by acquisitions of additional public
houses, sales were 7% higher at £81.5m
[2004: £76.2m). Adjusted profit before tox
ot £14.8m [2004; £15.2m) wos 3% below
last year and adjusted EPS fell from 42.0p
to 40.6p.

The Company remains highly cash generative
with net cash flow from operating octivities of
£17.8m compared to £16.6m in the pricr
year, Capital expenditure was £24.5m
{2004: £6.7m), of which £18.4m represented
investment in additional properties {2004:
£1.5m). The long standing equity pertfelic
was sold during the year raising £3.6m. The
Company remains cash posifive with net funds

of £6.0m {2004 £16.9m).

DIVIDEND

For the year ended 30 September 2005 the
board proposes a final dividend of 12.1p per
ordinary shore (2004: 11.9p} paycbie on

4 March 2006 to shareholders on the register
on 10 february 2006 subject fo approval af
the AGM on 2 February 2006. If approved
this would give a total dividend for the year
of 19.4p (2004 19.1p) representing an
increase of 2%.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

Increased costs and competitor activity,
together with the upfront revenue costs
relating fo the substantial tnvestment
programme achieved in 2005, hove inhibited
profit growth.

In the maraged house estate, the Company
achiaved a 0.8% increase in like for like
soles, and an improvement of 0.6% in gross
margins. This was, however insufficient 1o
cover the subsiantial increases in costs. Our
tenanted and free trade husinesses traded
well with scles and profit growth achieved
across each channel.

Consistent with our strategy of developing the
business fo deliver iong term shareholder
vaive, we have invested £24.5m in the year.
This included the acquisition of twa greentield
sites, eight monaged houses {five of which
incorporate lodge accommodation with a total
of 194 bedrooms), and three fenanted
houses. Six of the new manoged houses are
pub restaurants, bringing our total number of
pub sestavrants to 27. All the new properiies
will coniribute to profits in 2006.

Investment increased in the Hardys & Hansons
brand through corporate, retail and beer
brand activity. Significant progress has been
made including corporate sponsorship of the
MNottingham Arena (the entertainment venue),
the development of a consumer database and
the relaunch of 'Clde Trip’ and the
Cellormon’s Cosk range.

The Compary has made a smooth iransition
to the new licensing system, All cur pubs have
profected their exisiing conditions and most
have goined extra troding hours, generally
one hour on weekdays and two hours at
weekends across the estate.

The campeign in ports of the medio with
regard to the new licensing lows end binge
drinking has been unhelpful to the industry. The
Company's public houses are operating to the
highest standards and fully comply with the
Brifish Beer & Pub Associafion’s Code on Social
Responsibility Stondards for the Production and
Sale of Alecholic Drinks in the UK. Moreover




binge drinking does not represent a major
fssue since our estate is predominanily made
up of community and rural pubs.

The Government's position on smoking in
public houses remains far kom clear. Under
the present provisions of the bill now in
Parliament, smoking will continue to be
permifted in members’ clubs and in public
houses not offering food, byt will be banned
in these which do offer food. This compromise
appears unlikely to be sustainable.

Within cur estate almost half of our managed
house turnover is derived From our pub
restaurants which already have significant no
smoking arees, and most of ayr pubs,
managed and tenanted, have external areas
where smoking can continue.

MANAGED HOUSES

Market conditions became more difficult for
managed houses. Full year un-nvested like for
like turnover increased by €.8%, compared
with 3.6% (adjusted for Easter] for the 26
weeks fo the end of March 2005, Increased
competitive activity and a slowing of
consumer expenditure led to a 1.6% like for
like decline in the second half. The impact of
this weaker sales performance, combined with
an 8% increase in the minimum wage, a
substantial increase in the cost of uilitias and
the six month effect of the five yearly business
rates revaluation, was o reduction in profits in
like for like houses. In addition, with no new
properties having been acquired in 2004, the
Company did not have the benefit of
incremental profit from acquisitions in 2005,
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Chairman’s Statement coo.,

However, the Company continged to grow its
wet and dry margins whilst delivering good
valve o its customers, in spite of aggressive
pricing by some competitors, Average weekly
turnover wos mointained in excess of £13K
net per week, 62 managad houses now
provide food which accounts for 38% of
managed house turnover, o further 1% rise
since the half year, We continue to review the
content and positioning of cur menus to
ensure customers have a wide choica both in
content anc! price whilst still enjoying good
value for money.

Investment in our managed house operation
totalled £20.0m, of which £16 9m
represented the cost of acquisition of new
properties. The major part of this was the
acquisition in March 2005 of o package of
five pubs situated in the North West and
Yorkshire, together with associated lodge
bedrooms operating under the Premier Travel
Inn franchise. These properties cost £12.0m
and required further substantial investment of
£2.7m. This began in July 2005, and will be
completed by May 2006. Strotegically, this is
an important acquisition previding an
additional income stream in the form of letting
cecommodation, Operating under the Premier
Travel Inn franchise allows us aceess 1o the
Pramier Travel Inn brand, its central booking
system and its brand management experfise,

Three other public houses were acquired
during the yecr, namely the Thatch & Thisils
at Nelson, Lancashire, the Fox & Hounds,
outside Grantham, Lincolnshire and the White
Cow, Ikeston, Derbyshire. The first two have
been closed for refurbishment following
acquisition, but will contribute fully to profits
in the current year.

At the start of the financial year we acquired
a greenfield site outside Shrewsbury on which
we have built ¢ 180 cover pub restaurant,
named the Two Henrys, which opened in
early December,

In addition to the expenditure an acguisitions,
major refurbishments and alterations were
carried out 1o nine houses at a cost of
£1.4m. During the year a further 960 covers
were added to our foad operations bringing
the total number of covers to over 4,000,

Two houses were fransferred to tenancy in
the year,

We have olso increased our revenue
investment in marketing, allowing us to build
on its success through better understanding
consumer needs. Initial research has shown
that the offer in our managed houses is wall
received and shows positive progress
towards our “first choice focally’ goal, Direct
marketing trials are now being extended and
ongaing research undertaken to ascertain
customer preference and motivation by
segment from our grewing database. The
establishment of a large customer dotabase,
combined with the segmentation of our
estate, now enables beter targeting of retail
tactical marksting and promotions initiatives
across our business and will generate
incremental footfall.

Finally, our managed house team were
awarded Highly Commended in the Pub
Operator of the Year category at the
Publican Awards for the second year
running, This is a great achievement and
reflacts the professional standards within our
managed house operation,



TENANTED

Teranted performance was positive during
the yaar with uninvested like for like sales
up 1.5%. We continue to avoid o ‘one size
fits all” approach and to attract high quality
entrepreneurs impressed with the support
and flexibility provided by the Company.
Our personal lefting plans reflect the
individual circumstances and aspirations of
each tenant, joking into account differences
in length of tenure, discounts and rents.

Training suppert for our fenants is of
particular importance. As well as the advice
ond encouragement of our Business
Davelcpment Managers, a wide variety of
courses are available io ensure that they
can ocquire the necessary skills.

Three tenanted public houses were acquired
during the period ot a fotal cost of E1.4m: the
Fox Inn at Kirton, the Plough tan ot Ashbourne
and the Saracens Head at Shirley. Since the
period and we have acquired the Brickmakers
Arms af Newton Solney and the Swan &
Salmen ot Derby. These pubs cdd 1o the
quality of our estate ond will cantribute to
prefits in the current year. In addition, seven
investment projects were completed in our
tenanted estate at a cost to the Company of
£1.0m in addition to the tenants’ own
invesiment.

Three public houses were sold in the peried
as pard of our ongoing policy of impraving
the overall quality of the estate. At the end of
the year there were 182 public houses in the
tenanted estate.

BRANDS AND BREWING

During the year, we roised our brond profile
through supply to high profile accounts, the
most notable of which is the Nottingham
Arena, one of the largest enterfainment
venues in the East Midlands. Our association
with the Nottingham Arena not only gives our
brends positive protile but also enables us to
undertake cross-markating activities to our
mutval benefit.

Sales of cur own brewed drought beers
declined by 1% against @ market decline of
5.6% as caleulated by market research
consuliants ACNielsen. Our Cool, Olde Trip
and Cellarman’s Cask brands have performad
well. Cool won c silver medat in the
International Brewing Industry Awards in o
category which included keg beers from
around the world. The strong performance of
our Free Trade continues with good profit
growth resulting from an 18% increase in
sales. This combined with our commiiment
to o firstciass "one stop shop’ service has
resulted in onather successhul yeor.
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Chairman’s Statement coninued

Within the brewery an eight lone keg line
became fully operational in Ociaber, allowing
greater efficiencies and mare flexible manning,
We increased the capacity of delivery vehicles
fo improve load potenticl and efficiency and
extended our Navision information systems into
the brewery. We have olse conducted o review
of our contract brewing operations and ore
withdrawing from certain cantracts where
profitability is inadequate.

PROPERTY REVALUATION

The Company’s policy is to awn the freehold
or long leaseheld interest in its properties.
During the year the board undertook o
valuation of the Compony's land and buildings
assets, which were lost valued in 1994, based
on a sample valuation undericken by Fleurets
on behalt of the Company. This valuation
demonstrates a total value of freehold and
leasencld property assets of £181.5m,
£64.6m in excess of the balance sheet net
book value of £116.9m. This indicative
value has not been incarporated into the
2005 balence sheet pending the board’s
review of accounting policy on conversion
to irternational Financial Reporfing
Standards in 2006,

AlM

The Company has reviewed its market listing
and believes that there are sigrificant
advantages lo shareholders from transferring
the Company's ordinary and preference
shares to trading on the Alternative Invesiment
Market of the tendon Stock Exchange [AIM).

The board believes that AIM is o more
appropriate market for the Company that
should lead to a simplification of
administrafion requirements and will enckle
the Company to agree and execute
transactions more quickly should any

acquisition or other development opporfunities
arise in the future. The board also believes

there may be tax advantages te many private
shareholders arising frem the fransfer to AlM.

The board therefore proposes fo delist the
Company’s ordinary shares from the Official
List of the UK Lisling Authority and to apply
far them 1o be admitted to trading on AlM,
This change is subject to shareholders’
approval which will be sought at the Annual
General Meeting. Subject to such approval
being granted, the Company will delist the
Cempany’s ordinary and preference shares,
and apply for their admission to trading
on AlM.

The Company also intands to delist the 4%
Irredeemable tirst morigage debenture stock
and, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting, Hansons Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
intends to offer 1o purchase all of the
outstanding debenture stack at par.
Application will not be made to admit the
debenture stock fo trading on AlM.

No requast is being made to admit the
unlisted deferred ordinary shares of 5 pence
each, which in aggregate carry vofing rights
over 50 per cent of the Company’s equity
share capitel, to treding on AIM.

PEOPLE

Tim Bonham, Maneging Director, has decided
10 leave the Company and resigned from the
board on & December 2005. He will ieave
the Compory of the end of the yeor. Tim
joined the Company as Retail Director in
1990 and became Managing Director in
1998. On behalf of the board and the
shareholders, T thank him for his valuable
contribution and wish him well for the future.




Jonathan Webster, Retail Director and hoard
member since 1998, was appointed
Managing Director on 6 December 2005. He
has been with the Company for seven years,
having formerly been at Tom Cobleigh plc
and Bass PLC.

{ would also like 1o thank all those who have
worked in the Company together with our
tenants for their hard work and suppert. Once
again the Company has been able fo ollocate
shares to the Employee Share Incentive Plan
in the sum of £0.3m.

In addition lo regular funding of the pension
scheme, a special contribution of £0.5m
(2004: £0.4m] was made to the scheme
during the year, whose FRS 17 fuading leve!
has increased to 89% (2004: 87%). The
Compony hos continved to acecunt for
pensions under SSAP 24 The net deficit affer
tox disclosed on an FRS 17 basis is £1.2m
(2004: £1.1m).

PROSPECTS

The relative weakness in managed house like
for fike sales in the second halt of last yvear has
continved into the current financial vear. The
business is focused on tailoring a compefitive
response at cutle! level and operational
efficiencies, and on delivering profits from the
new properfies ocquired in 2005. Tenonted
and free trade performance continues to be
strong. Overall, trading in the current year is in
line with expectations.

The Company is financially strong and very
cash generative, and remains confident that
through selective investment and local market
initiatives it will continue 1o compete and
deveiop succesgfully.

Jomes Kerr-Muir
Chairman
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Marketing

MARKETING

Qur strotegy is to make Hardys & Hansens
first choice locally by building Company
profile and achieving higher oweraness in the
region, increasing customer visits ond spend,
promoting own beer brands and providing
activity that will incite passion cbout our
brends, internally and externally with both
customers and consumers.

The following main activities took place in
the year:

& PROFILE & AWARENESS
The Company sponsors the Mottingham
Arena, which houses the National lce
Stadium and is the biggest concert venue
in the East Midlands, with a full pian of
marketing support in place to drive traffic
between the two businesses. It also
sponsors a number of other regional
events, all cimed at raising its profife and
community presence.

The new web site was launched in August:
www.,hardysandhansons.co.uk

o INCREASING CUSTOMER VISITS
The relationship marketing programme has
recruited over 100,000 consumers 1o our
doiubase in the year. Food ond drink offer
mailings have received abaove industry
average response rafes and deliverad
incremental profit.

The Good Idens Guide, pimed of
increasing iraffic and frequancy of visits,
was launched across the estate giving
advice on the running of events, theme
nights and entertainment.

¢ PROMOTING BEER BRANDS
Olde Trip was relaunched in February with
a naw design, promotion and PR activity.
Sales grew by 49% during the activity and
the brond velvmes were up by 4.3% of the
end of the year.

CQOOL is still the top selling beer in our
portlolio and markefing activity has been
oimed of defining the target avdience and
opportunities to strangthen the brand and
broaden its appecl for 2005/06.

The guest ales portfolio was relaunched in
April with new beers to creute interest in
the range and reinforce the message that
Hardys & Harsons is an award-winning
brewsr. Guest ales volumes grew by 30%
in the year.




HARDYS & HANSONS IN THE
COMMUNITY

The Cempany is committed to being an active
and positive contributor to the communities

it serves, particularly as our employees

and customers often live and work in the
same areaq.

Each year our head office and managed
house steff and our tenants help to raise
significant amounts of money for meny
different local ond national cheritable causes.

In addition to providing practical and
cdministrotive support for these charilable
activities, the Company conlributes directly to
charities, principally to those nominated by
our employees.

The total amount distributed to charities in

2005 exceeded £50,000.

Members of the Hardys & Hansons in the
Communily committee [cen're] celebrale reaching
the £50,000 hurdle of choritable dongiions,
together with some of the many parficipants in fund-
raising events during the year.
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Directors and Advisers

Pictured from lefi:
Jonathan Webster, David Smith, lain Masson

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JONATHAN WEBSTER

Managing Director

Jenathan Webster [43) joined the Compaony
<5 Retail Director in 1998 and became
Menaging Directer in December 2005. He
has exiensive experience in the operation of
both managed ond tenanted public houses,
having spent two years with Tom Cebleigh plc
as Operations Director and 13 yaars with
Bass PLC including the roles of regicnal Retail
Director of Boss Taverns and Commercial and
Development Director of Gala Leisure,

DAVID SMITH

Finance Director and Company Secretary
David Smith [49] jeined the Campany in
1999, Prior fo his oppointment he spent three
years as Group Finance Director of Blacks
leisure Group plc and five years with
Pentland Group ple, finally as Senior Vice-
President of Speada International Limited, He
has extensive financial and general
management experience in branded
businesses.

JIAIN MASSON

Producfion Director

lain Masson (48] joined the Company in
2001, He is responsible for production,
distribution and cellar services. Prior to his
appeintment he spent two years as Head
Brewer of Greene King ple, nine years with
Greenalls ple and nine years with Bass
PLC. He has wideranging experience of
beer production, frode technical and
customer services.




Pictured from left:

James Kerr-Muir, Pafrick Helps, Nicholas Forman Hardy, John Barnes

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JAMES KERR-MUIR

Nor-Executive Chairman

James Kerr-Muir [64), Non-Executive
Chairman since 2004, has o wide breadth of
business and commercial experience and is
currently Non-Execulive Chairman of Senior
plc and Davenham Group Holdings timited
and Non-Executive Direcior of Gartmore
Fledgling Trust ple. He was previously Group
Finance Director at Kingfisher ple, Managing
Director UK ot Tate & tyle ple ard o non-
executive director of a number of companies
including Yates Group plc, Boddington Group
pic and the Qutdoor Group Limited.

PATRICK HELPS

Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Patrick Helps {60) served with the Company
for 32 years hecoming Production Directar in
1973 and Vice-Chairman in 1998, In 2001
he resigned as an executive director and
became @ non-execulive director.

NICHOLAS FORMAN HARDY
MNon-Executive Director

Nicholas Ferman Hardy {57) joined the
Company in 1987, He is Chairman of
Forman Hardy Holdings Limited. Formerly the
Chairman of the Nottingham-based media
group T. Bailey Ferman Limited, he is now
Chairman of T. Bailey Fund Managers Limited
and T. Bailey Asset Management Limited and
holds other chairmanships in agriculture.

JOHN BARNES

Senior Independent Director

John Barnes {56 joined the Company in 2004
as a nonexecutive direclor and became Senior
Independent Director in October 2005. He has
substantial consumer brand and leisure industry
experience having led the development of Harry
Ramsden’s plc as Executive Chairman. He is
currently Non-Executive Chairman of La Tosca
Group ple [formally Restaurant People Group),
is olso Non-Executive Chairman of Zoo Digital
Group ple and a Non-Executive Director of
Coffé Nero Group ple, Inferior Services Group
plc and Sportech ple. He previously served as a
MNaonExecutive Director of Yates Group ple and
Arena leisure ple.

AUDITORS

KPMG Audit Ple, St Nicholas House,
Park Row, Nottingham,

NG 6FG

BANKERS
Uoyds T3B Bank plc, PO Box 908,
125 Colmore Row, Birmingham, B3 2D3

CORPORATE ADVISERS AND
STOCKBROKERS

Arbuthnot Securities, 20 Repemaker Street,
tondon, EC2Y QAR

SOLICITORS
Browne Jacobson, 44 Castle Gate,
Nottingham, NG1 78J
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Corporate Ethical and Social Responsibility

The policy of the Company is to enhance
sharehalder value whilst recognising the
importance of operating in an ethical and
socially responsible manner, which helps 1o
preserve health, safety and the envirenment.

The Company recognises that its social,
environmental and ethical conduct has an
impact on its reputation. It fakes its corporate
ethical and socia! respensibility {CESR)
seriously and is committed to implementing its
Corporate Ethical and Social Responsibilities
Policy across the Company. This includes
good ethical behaviaur, cancern for employee
heath and safety, care for the environment
and community involvement,

The Company aims to maniain a productive
and cpen didlogue with ol interested parties
in its business including shareholders,
custorners, suppiiers ond empioyees. It has
astoblished customer relations, conducts
customer sclisfaction surveys, monitors and
develops supplier performance and
undertakes regular employee dialogue. I
maintains its recently relounched web site s
one of the main routes for providing
information to interested parties and for
investor contact.

The board takes ultimate responsibility for
CESR and is committed to developing and
implementing appropriate policies to create
and maintain long-term value for
shareholders. Sound company efhics makes
business sense by helping fo minimise risk,
ensuring legal compliance, enhancing
company efficiency and building reputation
amengst slokeholders.

The Company expects all of its business
activities to be conducted in accordance with
high standards of ethical conduct and fuli
compliance with all applicable laws. As a
minimum, the Company’s operations must
meet their legal and regulatory obligations
and it, in turn, applies thesa standards o all
dealings with customers, suppliers, employees
and other stakeholders.

It debates and coardinates its approach on
nafional issues through the British Beer & Pub
Association and cempany repressntatives play
significant roles within this bady.

SMOKING

The Government has now published its Health
Bill containing proposals an smoking in public
places. The Company will be taking an active
role, as part of the Brifish Beer & Pub
Association, to seek amendments 1o the current
proposals which it does not believe are soundly
based. In the meantime, it is working towards
the BBPA code, which is no smoking ot the bar
ond within back office areas by the end of
2005 and no smoking in 80% of the trading
area by the end of 2009. The Company is
encouraging its tenants fo achieve these targets
and provides information and promotional
matericl fo assist them,

NATIONAL ALCOHOL HARM
REDUCTION STRATEGY

The Company has incorporated its approach
‘o sersible drinking info the “Right Fit”
fraining programme, which is compulsory for
all managed house staff. A course hos been
developed for presentation fo children
schoc! outlining the issues surrounding alcohal,
aimed at establishing a responsible affitude to
alcohol and encouraging them to socialise in o
safe and considerate manner. The Coempany
abides by the British Beer & Pub Association
code of practice on promoticns.

The Company, in partnership with
Nottinghamshire Police, provides training for
the British stitute of Innkeeping Drugs
Awareness cerfificate. This has been
successtully delivered not only to our own
licensees bul aiso fo licensees of other pub
companies.

GAMING MACHINES

The Compary complies with the legislation
surrounding amusements with prizes machines
in public houses and al! machines are clearly
marked that piay is permitted to those of 18
years or over. The Company continues o

confribute 1o the Responsibility in Gombling
Trusl, a charity for addicled machine gamblers.

DISABILITY DISCRIMINATION ACT

The Company is committed fo bulfilling its
obligations under the Disability Discrimination
Act. Part lll of the Act became operctive at the
beginning of the reporting vear in October
2004 and the Company has engaged expert
consultants to ensure that its approach to this
part of the Act is appropriate. In addition, the
Company’s tenants have been informad of
their responsibifilies.

It is the policy of the Company to give full and
fair consideration to applications for
empioyment received from disabled persons,
having regard to their particular aptitudes and
abilities and wherever possible to confinue the
empioyment of, and to arrange appropriate
training for, employees who have become
disabled persons during the period of their
employment. The Company provides the same
opportunities for fraining, corser development
and promotion fer disabled employees as for
other employaes.

EMPLOYEES

The Company aims for fair reward and
recognition for all employees. It is policy to
provide fraining thot develops skills and helps
fo achieve corporate objectives. The
Company is commitied to an active Equal
Opportunities Policy which maans people are
assessed for employment, development,
appraisal or promotion without regard 1o age,
gender, race, ethnic origin, religion o

disability.

The Company aims to ensure that stoff are
well informed and consulted whare
appropriote and conforms with the
Information and Consultation of Employees
(ICE] Regulations 2004. This involves, amang
o number of initiatives, o twoway “cascade”
briefing ond consultation process throughout
the whole Company. This is in addition fo any
meetings held by directors and departmental
managers with their own staff in the normal
course of business.



Tne Company has in place o “whistle
blowing” policy, whereby smployees may
report, in confidence, suspected
wrongdoings. All employees cre made
aware of this palicy threugh its publication
on the Company’s web sile.

Financial statements published halfyearly to
shareholders are alse made available and
briefed to employees. An approved share
incentive plan has operated for a number of
years and provides recognition to staff for
their coniribution to the success of the
business and thereby achieves a direct share
of profits which reflects the Company’s
overal! performance.

The Company publishes "Hale & Hearty”, a
regular newsletter which is sent to all
managers, employess and tenants. It is
designed to report what is happening within
the Company and the various activities that
have taken place ot the brewery and
throughout its estate.

CHARITIES

the Company contributed £10.000 to
charities during the year. These contributions
were principally fo charities nominated by
our employees.

LOCAL AUTHORITY PARTNERSHIPS
Parinerships with local authorities are becoming
of increasing importance, particulary with
regard to crime ond disorder and the
implementation of the new Licensing Act. The
Company represents itself and plays an active
role or @ number of these partnerships.

LEARNING

The Company encourages parlicipation by
employees as school gavernors in schools in
our frading area in the belief that schools can
benefit from the experience of individuals in
companies such os ours.

The Company is also actively involved with
local schools in promoting healihy eating,
work experience schemes and in the Young

Enterprise scheme, which is cimed at
developing team building and communication
skills ond the business and ecenomic
understanding of pupils. Working with
Mottingham Trent University, the Company
provided graduate work placement
experience and also employs young people
under o Modern Apprenticeship scheme run
in conjunction with Nottingham Chamber of
Commerce,

The Company is aclively involved on the
Nottinghamshire STARS project, which is
aimed at developing skills that will enable it
to remain effective and compelitive by the
provision of qudlity training that will
encourage positive attitudes, thereby enabling
it fo retain good quality staff and provide o
good service 1o its customers.

ENVIRONMENT

The Company complies with all relevant
envirenmental legislation and seeks 1o
minimise the risk of all forms of poliution and
nuisance. b operaies in an enviranmentally
responsible way o protect its staff, brands
and communities and, in so deing, it is
commified fo supporfing envircnmental
sustainability and biodiversity. It achiaves
these commitments by meeting measuroble
standards of perfermance on those key
aspects of its operations that have
environmental impacts.

Brewing beer involves the use of natural
products, primarily malted barlay, hops, yeast
and water. Coproducts of brewing are,
where possible recycled, e.g. spent grains as
catile feed.

Environmental issues are covered in the
compony’s Corperate Ethical and Social
Responsibilities Policy, which is published on
the company’s web site.

Regular environmental audits are conducted in
the brewery with the resulting action points
being addressed throughout the year. A new
environmental action plan has been davised
for the current yecr.

Energy used within the brewing and
packaging processes is recycled cs far as
practicable. The Company’s aim is fo
minimise energy consumplion by its contirued
use of measuring and monitoring lechniques
and by sefting Best Practice targets for
energy reduction to ensure continuous
improvement in environmental performance.
The Company is committed fo compliance
with the climate change levy as part of the
brewing sector agreement with the British
Beer & Pub Association. Whilst the Company
is on frack to meet its agreed energy
efficiency quotient targefs up to 2010, it
continues fo farget further reductions in energy
use both through operational changes and
targeled capital investment,

The Company uses significant amounts of
water as part of the brewing process, It
collates water consumption levels against Best
Prectice targets and undertokes detailed
surveys at its main sites with a view to
reducing usage. It works closely with Severn
Treni Waler fo meet siringent standards for the
disposal of its effluent.

The Company meeis its packaging waste
responsibilities through membership of the
nationwide compliance scheme “Valpak”.

Glass is collected for recycling from the
majority of the Company’s monaged houses,
Waste cooking oil is collected and disposed
of by a waste contractor under strict
cempliance control by the Company.

Printer cartridges are recycled with @ donation
for each one being made by the recycling
company to Nottingham City Hospital.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report for the 52
weeks ended 30 September 2005. The
comparative figures also cover a 52 week period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company's business operations are
vertically integrated with its principal
activities consisting of the brewing of beer,
the wholesaling and reteiling of beer, wines
and spirits and soft drinks, the retailing of
food and the ownership and management of
public houses.

A review of the period’s activities and future
developments is contained in the Chairman's
Statement on pages 2 to 7.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS
The Company profit for the period is shown
an page 24.

Operaling profii of £14.3m and adjusted
profit before tax of £14.8m decreased by 1%
and 3% respeciively {see note 10). Profit
before tax in the year was £18.3m compared

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS

to £16.2m in 2004. Profit before tax included
£3.6m profit on the disposal of fixed assets in
the period compared ta £1.0m in 2004.

Earnings per ordinary share in the period
were 51.09 pence whilst adjusted earnings
per share decreased by 3% from 42.02
pence to 40.58 pence (see note 11).

Interim dividends were paid on 1 August
2005 on the ordinary and deferred ordinary
shares of 7.30 pence per share and 7,035
pence per share respectively. The directors
recommend o finol dividend of 12.1 pence
per share on beth the ordinary and deferred
ordinary shares which, it approved, will be
paid on & March 2006 1o sharehoiders on
the Register of the close of business on

10 February 2006. This represents a total
ordinary dividend for the pericd of 19.4
pence per share, an increase of 2%.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN SHARE
CAPITAL

As at 6 December 2005 the directors are
oware of the following substantiol interests
holding, or with interest in, 3% or more of the
ordinary called-up share capital of the company:

The interests of directors in office at 30 September 2005 were:

30 September 2005

Forman Hardy
Investments

lalsa included in the
beneficial interests of
M.J. Forman Hardy)

777,515 3.88%

AEGON Asset

Management 638,123 3.19%
Legal & General
Invesiment
Management 631,022 3.15%
Hardy Hanson Holdings Limited owns the
whole of the deferred ordinary shares in the
Company, which carry four voles per share,
ond therefore controls 50% of the equity

shareholders’ voling rights.

DIRECTORS

The names of the current divectors of the
Company and their biographical details are set
out on poges 10 ond 11, Al directors served
throughout the period with the exception of
MJ. Barnes who was appointed as a direcior
on 1 November 2004. PT. Helps, N.J. Forman
Hardy and D.A.G. Smith refire by rotation and
offer themselves for re-eleciion.

1 October 2004

Beneficial Non-beneficial Beneficial Non-kereficial
J.R. Kerr-Muir
5p Ordirary 2,000 — — —
P.T. Helps
First preference 240 20 240 30
Second preference 403 86 403 129
5p Ordinary 125,399 439,815 125,399 445,295
Hardy Hansen Heldings Limited 7184 12,220 7,184 12,220
T.E. Bonham [resigned 6.12.05)
First preference 100 - 10¢ —
5p Ordinary 18,459 - 17,4628 —
N.J. Forman Hardy
First preference 1,500 — 1,500 —_
Second preference 2,598 —_ 2,598 —
5p Ordinary 1,359,520 - 1,359,520 —
Hardy Hanson Holdings Limited 65,513 42,375 65,513 42,3745
J.P. Webster
Sp Crdinary 9,830 -_ 8,999 —
D.A.G. Smith
5p Crdinary 6,850 - 6,019 —
1.S. Masson
5p Crdinary 4,187 - 3,356 —
M.J). Barnes
5p Ordinary — - — —

No arrangements to which the Company was o party exisled al the end of the financial period or ot aay time during that period whose objects
enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the aequisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any body corporate, other
than as porticiponts in the share incentive plan or long-term incentive plan {LTIP}.

Foliowing the year end TE. Bonham, J.P. Websier, D.A G. Smith and 1.5, Masson have sach ocguired 36 shares under the shore incentive plon.
There have been no other movements in directors’ interests, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, between 30 Septembar 2005 and

6 December 2005.




FIXED ASSETS

The Company's freehold and leasehold
properties were professionally revaived as at
30 September 1994. Since the adoption of
FRS 15 the Company's accounting palicy has
been net to revalue properties. The directors
are, however, of the opinion thot the market
values of the Company's properties are in
excess of the book value and have decided to
provide ¢ memorandum valuation of
properties for 2005, which is appended to
note 12 to the financial stotements. This
indicative value has not been incorparated
into the 2005 bolance sheet pending the
board’s review of accounting policy on
conversion o IFRS in 2006.

Furthermore, the board regulorly reviews
property values for impairment under the
provisians of FRS 11.

During the period, the Company disposed of
its equity porifolio with net proceeds of
£3.6m. There have been no other significant
changes in the fixed assefs during the
financial period except in the ordinary course
of the business.

A statement of movements In fixed assets
during the period is shown in note 12 fo the
financial statements,

DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Details of the Company's financial instruments
are disclosed in note 28 fo the financicl
statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with FRS13. The Company's enly
financia! kiabilities os defined by the siandard
ore the 4% iredeemable first morgoge
debenture stock and the first and second
cumulative preterence shares.

It is the Company’s policy to invest the
maijority of cash reserves in shorterm interest
bearing deposit cecounts. The Compony doss
not use finoncial derivatives ond its business
does not involve material expesure fo fereign
exchange iransacticns.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company will adopt International
Finoncial Reporting Standards [IFRS) when
preparing the interim and final accounts for
the year ending 29 Sepfember 2006. The
comparative figures for the year ending 30

September 2005 will be restated and there
will be changes to the Company's accounting
policies. For prudence it is likely that the
Company will file interim accounts 30 days
later than narmal, which is the maximum
period ollowable.

The conversion is progressing well with the
detailed impact assessment completed and
new accounting policies drafted. The Company
is in the process of finclising the opening
bolance sheet as ar 1 October 2004 together
with the restated comparatives. The areas of
significant change will be excise duly, inferest
attributable fo loans to customers, property
valyation, pensions, shace optior schemes
{LTIP), segmental reporting, financial instruments
ftrade investments and preference shares),
deterred tax, leases and dividends.

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

tn mast instances supnliers are paid by the end
of the month following receipt of an invoice for
the supply of goods or services, provided the
supply has been satisfactorily completed. In the
remaining cases payment is made on the basis
of terms agreed in advance with individual
suppliers. Trade creditor days of the Company,
based on the ratio of Company trade creditors
ot the end of the period 1o the amounts
invoiced during the peried by trade creditors
were 39, being 28 working days.

CLOSE COMPANY

The board is of the opinion that the Company
is a close company within the meoning of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988,

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPQNSIBILITIES

Company law requires the direclors to
prepare financial siotements for sach finencic!
period which give o rue and fair view of the
state of the Compeny’s affairs and of its profit
or loss for that period. In preparing those
financial statements, the directors are
required to:

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently

& Moake judgements and estimafes that are
raasonable and prudent

e Siate whether applicable accounting

siandards have been followed, subject to
any materiol departures disclosed and
explained in the financial sfotements

¢ Prepare the financicl stafements on the
going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to assume that the
Company will centinue in business.

The directors are rasporsibla for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy ar any time the financial
pasition of the Company and encble them 1o
ensure thal the financial statements comply
with the Comparies Act 1985. They are also
raspansikle for safeguarding the assets of the
Compony ond hence for loking reasonable
steps for the prevention and defection of
fraud or other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for ensuring
thet the Diractors” Report and other
information included in the annual report is
prepored in accordonce with compeny low.
They are also responsible for ensuring thot
the annual report includes information
required by the Listing Rules of the UK Listing
Autharity.

The muaintenonce and integrity of the web
site is the responsibility of the directors; the
work carried out by the auditors does not
involve consideration of items published on
the web site and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibifity for any changes that
may have occuired to the information
contained in the financial statements, since
they were initially presented on the web site.

Legislation in the United Kingdom goverring
the preparction ond dissemination of the
financiol statements end other information
included in annual reports may differ from
legalisation in other jurisdictions, including
those who may have access to the Infernet.

The respansibiliies of the Company’s
auditors in cormection with the ennual report
and financial statements are set out in their
report on page 23.
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Directors’” Report coninued

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT MARKET
Shareholders will have received, with the
Report & Accounts, a document explaining
the proposed application 1o the london Stock
Exchange for the admission of the
Company’s Ordinary Shares and Preference
Shares to the Alternative Invesiment Market
(AIM).

AIM was launched in 1995 as the Londen
Stock Exchange’s market specifically
designed for smaller companies, with a more
flexible regulatory regime.

The board believes that AIM is a more
appropriate market for the Company, which
should lead to lower ongaing costs associated
with being a public quoted company and o
simplification of administrative requirements.

It will also enable the Company to agree
and execute transactions more quickly should
any acquisition or other development
oppertunities arise in the future.

The board envisages no alteration in the
overall standerds of reporiing and
governance that the Company has always
achieved. Accordingly, the board believes
that the Company's Ordinary Shares will
continue to be attractive to institutional
investors, while the AIM tax regime, referred
to in the Circular enclosed with this document,
will also make the Company's Ordinary
Shares affractive to AlM-specific funds as well
as the retail investor.

A special resolution proposing thai the
Company gives nofice of its intention to
cancel the listing cf the Ordinary Shares and
the Preference Shares on the Official List and
applying to the londen Stock Exchange for
their admission o AIM is summarised below
ard is included in the Naolice of this meeting.

AUDITORS

Following the resignation of Page Kirk as the
Company's audilors and subsequent
appointment of KPMG Audit Plc, they have
expressed their willingness 1o continue in
office os auditors and an ordinary resolution
propasing their reappointment will be
submitted at the annual general meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual generol meeting of the Company
will be held on Thursday 2 February 2006 for
the purpose of fransacting the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Resolution 1

is the usual resclution to receive and adopt
the Directors’ Report and Financial Statements
for 2005.

Resolution 2

is a resolulion o approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report, which can ke found on
pages 19 to 22.

Resolution 3

is to declare a final dividend on the ordinary
and deferred ordinary shares of 12.1 pence
per share, which will be paid on & March

2006 to shareholders on the register at the
close of businass on 10 February 2006.

Resolutions 4 to 6

are for the reappointment of directars, The
Company's arficles of association require that
onedhird of direciors thot are required fo refire
by rofation must retire and offer themselves for
election. Separate resolutions will be proposed
on each of these appointments.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Resclution 7

is an ordinary resolution to reappoint KPMG
Audit Plc as auditors and to authorise the
directors to set their remuneration. The board
appointed KPMG Audii PLC as auditors to
replace Poge Kirk who had resigned. Pursuant
to section 383{3)(b) of the Companies Act 1985

special notice of the resolution is required.

Resolution 8

is o special resolution for the variation of the
Company's articles of association in relation
to Article 87.1 1o provide that fees payoable to
directors (not including contractual
remuneration of executive directars) should be
determined by the directors.

Article 87.1 regulates only fees payable fo
directors and requires the Company to obtain
shareholder approval for the payment of
directors’ fees to individual directors in excess
of £25,000 per annum. It does nei regulate
contractual remuneration (salary, bonus or
otherwise} paid to executive directors, which
is subject to review by the Remuneration
Committee. It has been the practice of the
Company fo pay directors’ fees to non-
executive directors only and there are no
current intentions to change this practice.

Having regard o current market practice, the
board considers that the inflexibility of Article
87 in its current form puts the company of o
competitive disadvantage, particularly in
relation to the recruitment of non-executive
directors, The board recommends that Arficle
87 be modified so that fees payable to
directors should be fixed by the beard and
that in aggregate such fees payable to oll of
the directors shall not exceed the sum of
£200,000 per annum.

Resolution 9

is a special resolution that the Ordinary
Shares listed on the Official List are delisted
and the Company be authorised and
instructed to obtain listing of these shares
on the Alternalive Investment Market,
Shareholders are referred to the circular
which accompanies the Annual Report &
Accounts for a detailed explanation as to
why the directors consider the resolution in
ihe best interests of the Compary and its
shareholders.

Resolution 10

is a special resolution that provides for the
renewat of shareholder approval for the
Company {or a suhsidiary of it} to purchase
ouisianding irredeemable first merigoge
debenture stock. The maximum price paid
for £1 nominal of Stock will be £1, as set
out in the resclution. The total nominal
value of this debenture stock is £200,000
and the autherity to purchase is sought in
order 1o simplify administration.

REPORT & ACCOUNTS

The Annual Report & Accounts are also
availoble on the Company’s web site
[www.hardysandhansons.co.uk).

The Brewery

Kimberley rder of the Board
Nottingham D.A.G. Smith
6 December 2005 Secrefary




Corporate Governance

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE

The Finencial Reperting Council issued a revised
Combined Code on Corporate Governance in
Tuly 2003 ["the Code"), which is effective for
financial years beginning on or afier November
2003 The bocrd has reviewed and applied the

edditional requirements of the Code.

The Company applies the principles of the Code
through its own behaviour, by monitoring
developments and best practice

in corporate governance and, where
appropriate, adepting relevant
recommendations and best practice from

a number of sources.

In the opinion of the board, the Company has
complied throughout the year with Section 1 of
the Code applicable to smaller companies,
apart from minor instances referred fo below.

THE BOARD

The board consists of a non-executive chairmen,
a managing director, two execulive directors
and three non-executive directors. Biographies
of the board members appear on pages 10
and 17 of this report,

James Kere-Muir, Chairman and o nonexecutive
director, and John Barnes, who has been
appointed a3 the Senior Independent Director,
are considered by the board fo be independent
of management and free from any business or
other relationship which could interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement.

Nicholas Forman Hardy and Petrick Helps are
not considered independent by the board due
to their shareholdings and length of service.
Both hold interests in the Company and in
Hardy Honson Holdings as listed on page 14.

All four nen-executive directors are
appointed for specific terms and these are
shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on page 20. The terms end conditions of
appoiniment of the non-executive directors
are avoilable during normal business hours
at the Company’s Registered Office.

New appeintments fo the board receive an
appropriate inducfion to gain an understanding
of the Company's business, which includes
meetings with senior management.

Thete is en agreed procedure for the directors
to loke independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Company's expense. This is in
addition fo the access that every director has to
the company secretary. Board members are
provided with access to appropriate external

fraining courses.The board met formally on
twelve occasions during the period and there
was full aftendance by directors eligible to
attend these mestings except for one meefing
each by Patrick Helps and David Smith. There is
a schedule of maftters reserved for the board
which includes; approval of overall company
siralegy, material capitel commitments, business
acquisitions and disposals, major litigation
matters and board appoinfments. The secretary
is responsible to the board for ensuring that
board precedures are followed.

The Company also purchases appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors and officers.

The Chairman meels regularly with the non-
executive directors without the presence of
executive direclors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board delegates its authority for certain
matiers to its Remuneration, Audit end
MNaminations Committees. The board
approves the terms of referance of each of the
committees ond these are available on written
request from the Company Secreiary and ore
published in the Investor Relations section of
the Company’s web site.

All members of the board have the right to
aftend any committes meeting, whether or not
they are a member of the committee, other than
where they have an interest in the subject
matter being discussed. This is, however,
subject to the right of any committee, with the
prier consent of the Chairman of the beard, 1o
bar any director or directars from o meeting if
the committee considers the interests of the
company o require.

Members of the board atfending a meating
of a committee of which they are not
members are not included in the querum.
The board believes that the current board
commitiee structure and membership enables
the Company to comply with all provisions
of the Code applicable to smaller companies
except for the membership of board
committees. Whilst there ore twe
independent non-executive directors on each
board commitiee, their constiution does not
folly meet the requirements of the Code due
ta the inclusion of non-independent non-
execufive direclors as members of each
committee. The board does, however,
consider ihat the board membership and
committee structures now in ploce, which are
outlined below, are appropriate for and
compatible with the size and share structure
of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The composition of the remuneration
committee is as follows:

J.R. Kerr-Muir, Chairman

M.). Barnes [from November 2004)
N.J. Forman Hardy

P.T. Heips

The board recognises that it does not comply

with section B.2.1. of the Code, in that not all
of the members of the remuneration committee
are independent non-executive directors. The

commitiee has the breadth of experience and

knowledge required to fulfil its duties.

The commitiee is required to meet not less
than twice each year, Buring the financial
pericd it met on three occosions to discuss
remuneration matters including awards under
the directors’” Performance Share Plan and
directors’ benefits in kind.

The main responsibilifies of the committee are fo:

o Review all ospects of executive directors’
remuneration and remuneration policy

e Design appropriate packages o affract,
retain and motivate management of the
quality required

e Judge where to position the Company’s
remuneration policy relative to other
companies

e FPrepare ¢ reporf on remuneration policies
applicable to the executive direciors for
shareholders

The report of the commitiee is set out on pages
1950 22.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The composition of the audit commitiee is as
follows:

1.R. KerreMuir, Chairman
M. Barnes {from November 2004)
PT. Helps

The board recognises that it does nct comply
with section C.3.1. of the Code, in that not «ll
of the members of the audit commitee are
independent non-executive directors. The
Chairman has considerable financial experience
and the committee is considered adequaiely
qualified.

The committee is required to mest not less than
three times each year, and during the financial
pericd met on four occasions. The meetings
may be attended, by invilation, by senior
executives and the Company’s auditors.
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The main responsibiliiies of the commitiee
are fo:

& Review half year ond annual financial
statements prior fo submission to the board,
including accounting policies, practices and
standards and matters of goed governance

e Discuss with the external auditor problems
and reservations arising from is work

e Review the effectiveness of internal control
systems

¢ Review the effectiveness of the risk
management process

e Consider the appeintment of the external
ouditor tegether with its performance,
independence, scope of duties and fees

The Company has an audit policy that
establishes guidelines for the appoiniment,
responsibilities and remuneration of the externcl
cuditer and governs the mix of audit and nor-
cudit work undertaken by the external auditor,
determines the internal audit requirements of the
Compary and oullines the control processes
necessary to ensure compliance with the policy.

The Company uses the auditors for non-cudit
services such as taxation advice, taxatfion
planning and corporate aclivity. When
appointing advisers for nerraudit work the
Company considers the value for money,
experience and objectivity required and in this
respect it has used other accounting firms for
non<audit work.

The audit committee is satisfied that where the
Compuary’s auditors are used for non-audit
services their objectivity and independence is
not compromised.

During the year the qudit commitiee carried out
a formel seTection process that included a
number of auditors presenting tenders and &
detailed review and interview process by the
audit committee. KPMG Audit Ple was
appointed as the Company's auditor for the
year ended 30 September 2005 following the
resignation of Page Kirk.

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The compasifion of the nominaticns committee s
as follows:

N.J. Ferman Hardy, Chairman

J.R. Kerr-Muir

M.J. Barnes [from November 2004)
PT. Helps

The board recognises that it does not comply
with section A.4.1. of the Code in that there is
not a majority of the members of the
nominations commitiee who are independent
nonexecufive directors. The committee has the
breadth of experience and knowledge required
to fulfil its duties. The Chairman of the
nominations commitiee is not considered
independent under the Code.

The committee is responsible for making
recommendations fo the board regarding ali
board appointments and reappointments as
dicteted by circumstancas.

The main responsibilities of the committee are:

o To fill executive and non-executive board
vacancies

# The appointment of the Chairman of the
Company

e To consider the reappointment of directors
refiring

The committee met once during the year fo
consider and approve the propesal to reappoint
the directors retiring at the annual general
maeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company's issued share capital is equal
to the amount that is auvthorised and it has no
plans to avthorise or issue any shares in the
foreseeable future. Any additional funding
requirements will be met by the mancgement
of cash and working capital rescurces,
including debt if necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The boord has overall responsibility for the
Company's systems of internal control. It has
reviewed the procedures relafing fo internal
control guidance for directors in the Code. The
systems in operation are designed ‘o manage,
rether than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business cbjectives and can only
provide a reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board has delegated responsibility for
reviewing the Company’s system of infernal
contral and its effectiveness to the Audit
Committee. An executive management board
maintains day-to-day control of the business and
the key procedures thal have been established
to provide effective internal control. These
procedures which comply with the requirements
of the Internal Control: Guidance for Directors
on the Combined Code include:

o Well-structured reporting lines to the board.
There is @ formal schadule of matters
specifically reserved for decisions by the
board.

e A formalised reporfing siructure which
includes the setting of comprehensive
annual profit and cash budgets and key
performance indicators which are updated
on a regular bosis to form forecasts which
are reviewed ol executive meetings.

o Aboard review of actual monthly resulis
against budget and previous years, together
with commentary on significant variances.

e Defined authorisation levels for the placing
of orders and contracts and payments
therecf.

e Clear authorisation levels and segregation
of accounting duties 1o contro! major
financiol risks.

¢ Daily cash movements are reconciled and
the Company’s cash flow is monitored
menthly in comparison with budget and
forecast.

o A deiiled investment approval process
requiring either executive or board
authorisation of oll majer projects,
depending on the value.

® Defailed postimplementation approisals of
major copital expendiiure projects.

The Company employs interncl refail business
auditors within its managed house operations. In
addition, the Head of Secretarial and Treasury,
a gudlified accountent, has underiaken a
programme of infernal cudit and control systems
reviews, as cgreed with the audit commitiee. A
report on each area of review is presented fo
the audit commitiee and to the executive
management committee upon completion. The
audit committee and board are of the cpinion
that this approach is effective and appropriate
to the size of the Company.

The Company has undertaken o business impact
analysis and risk assessment and is highlighting
potential risk exposures to its operations. A
multilisciplined review group has idenfified the
crifical risks and is developing o crisis
mancgement and business recovery plan tha
will come into effect in the event of a disaster
offecting o business critical area. This process
has involved the greup in identifying critical
risks, forming an opinion on the likelihood of
these risks materialising, putting in hand plans
to reduce the incidence and impact of these
critical events and considering the costs of
conire! relative fo the benefits cbiained in
managing the risk.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company values the views of its
shareholders and recognises their interest in its
strategy, performance, board membership and
quality of management.

The AGM is used to communicate with all
shareholders and they are encouraged 1o
porticipate. The Chairmen of the remuneration,
audit and nominations committees are available
to answer questions. Separale resclutions are
propesed on each matter so tha they can ke
given proper consideration and there is o
resolution fo approve the annual report and
accounts. The Company counts all proxy votes
and indicates the leve! of proxies lodged on
each resolution, after it has been dealt with by o
show of hands. All Combined Cede provisions
regarding consiructive use of the AGM are
complied with.

The Company's web site

{www hardysandhansons.co.uk] is also used to
communicale with existing and potentict
shareholders. The Investor Relalions secticn of
the web site contains details of annuadl and
interim report and accounts, corporate
governance, an events calendar and latest
investor news. It also has links to the web sites
of the London Stock Exchange and the
Company’s Regisirar, Capita Registrars.

GOING CONCERN

Having mede the appropricte enquiries and
toking account of the Company's net cash
resources, the directors have o reasonakle
expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue its operations for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they centinue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.



Directors” Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

This repert has been approved and adopted
by the board. It has been prepared by the
remuneration committee in accordance with
the Directors’ Remuneration Report
Regulations 2002 and the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority.

The Regulations require the auditors to report
tc the Company's members on the ‘cudited
information” within the directers’ remuneration
report and fo state whether, in their opinion,
that part of the report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985. The report has, therefore, been
divided into separate sections for cudited and
unaudited information.

An ordinary reselution will be put fo the
sharehelders at the Annual General Meeting
on 2 February inviting them to approve this
report.

UNAUDITED INFORMATION
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remunerction committee comprises the
four non-executive directors, James Kere-Muir
{chairman), John Barres, Patrick Helps ond
Nicholas Forman Hardy. It makes
recommendations to the board on all aspects
of execuiive directors’ remuneration packages
including bonuses and other benefits.

James Kerr-Muir is the independent Non-
Executive Chairman of the Company and John
Barnes, Patrick Helps and Nicholas Forman
Hardy are non-executive direciors. None of the
committee has any personal financial interest
[other than as a shareholder] or conflicts of
interest arising from cross-directorships. No
executive director plays any part in any
discussion about his own remuneration.

Jchn Barnes became a member of the
committee on 24 November 2004,

It is recognised that membership of this
committee has not fully complied with the
Combined Code throughout the year and this
is referred 1o further in the statement on
Corporate Governance,

In determining aspects of the directors’
remuneration in the year the commitiee
consulted Monks Partnership.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The committee’s overall policy is to provide
competitive remuneration packages for the
executive directors having regard to pay,
cendifions and performance. Remuneration
packages are designed to attract, motivate,
and retain high qudlity executives to develop
the Company and achieve its strategic
objectives. The performance measurement of
the executive directors and the determination
of their annucl remuneration packages are the
responsibility of the committee.

The various elements of the remuneration

pockage for executive directors are:

e Base annual salary and benefits

® Annual bonus payments linked to
performance

e longterm incentive plan {LTIP} awards

e Pensicn arrangements

The Company's policy is that o proportion of
the executive directors’ pay should be
performance related. In 2005 the company
astablished a longterm incentive plan {TIP}
for directors which is designed io reward
long-term business performance and facilitcte
retention. This scheme was developed, using
external advice, in line with current industry
practice.

BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

Executive directors’ base salaries reflect their
responsibilities, competitive market value and
performance. Bose salary is reviewed by the
committee each year giving due consideration
to upto-deie advice, information and any
individual changes in responsibility. Toxable
benefits include private healthcare, fully
expensed company car (or cash equivalent)
and product allowance. Each director also
participates in the share incentive plan which is
available to all qualifying employees, subject
to ¢ present HM Revenue & Customs maximum
payment of £3,000.

ANNUAL BONUS PAYMENTS

Executive direclors are eligible to participate
in an annrual bonus scheme. The maximum
potential bonus is 70% based on yearon-year
Company profit performance, adjusted for
retail price movements.

The bonus for 2005 was payable on
achievement of the following performance
criteria;

% of salary  PBT growth cbove

payable inflation farget
20% 2.0%
30% 3.0%
40% 5.5%
50% 8.0%
&0% 10.5%
70% 13.0%

As these performance targets were not met no

bonus was paid in 2005,

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

During the year the company introduced o
Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) follewing
sharehclder approval at the annual general
meeting on 9 February 2005. Under the plan,
in any ene year directors will either be granted
nilcost options or ke given contingent share
awards. The remuneration committee will
delermine the options fo be granted and the
performance conditions to be met to allow
vesting of options or shares. Total Shareholder
Return {TSR} achieved by the Company over
the three year performance period when
compared fo the percentage increcse in the

FTSE All-Share Index;

— is less than the percentage increcse in the
index, the option will lopse and will cease
to be exercisable;

— is equal to the percentage increase in the
index, the option will become exercisable
as fo 25% of the shares the subject of the
opticn;

— exceeds the percentage increase in the
index by of least 9% per cnnum
compounded, the option will become
exercisable as to 100% of the shares the
subject of the option;

— exceeds a value which is equal to the
percentage increase in the index but is
less than 9% per annum compounded
chove the percentage increase in the
index, o proportionate amount of the
option will become exerciscble between
25% and 100% of the shares the subject
of the option.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report coninued

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN Coniinved

In 2005 the remuneration committee awarded share options equivalent to 50% of salary to executive directors. The vesling of these share options is
contingent on the performance of the Company’s fotal shareholder return {TSR} compared with that of the FTSE AlkShare Index. This comparator
graup was selected s it provides a more consistent benchmark than sector specific indices and is considered most representative for the broad
equity market investor, In 2005 the sum of £3%,000 was charged to the profit and loss account to provide for the cost of these share options.

During the first year of operation of the plan the TSR achieved an 11% incremental performance over the FTSE All-Share Index.

A summary of directors” interests in nil cost options granted under the LTIP is shown below. The plan was introduced during the period and
accordingly none have yet vested.

Price

1 Cranted  Exercised 30 at date Date

Cciober during during  September Exercise  of award from which
2004 the year the year 2005 price P exercisable Expiry date
TE. Benham {resigned 6.12.05) — 12,056 — 12,056 Nil 676 21 March 2008 21 March 2015
J.P. Webster — 10,355 — 10,355 Nil 676 21 Morch 2008 21 March 2015
D.A.G. Smith — 8,654 — 8,654 Nil 676 2% March 2008 21 March 2015
1.5, Masson — 7,544 — 7,544 Nil 676 21 March 2008 21 March 2015

The mid-market ordinary share price on 30 September 2005 was 682.5p.
The highest price of ordinary shares in the year was 712.5p and the lowest price was 502.5p,

PENSIOMN ARRANGEMENTS
Each executive director is a member of the Company's defined benefit pension scheme and contributes 6.5% of salary up to HMRC earnings cap
to the scheme. They are entitled to receive o pension of up to two-thirds of annual base salary on retirement subject to their length of service and

Inland Revenue limits. The pension entitlement is calculated ot 1/45th of fina! pensionable salary for every year of pensionable service and the
normal refirement oge is 65 years.

No element of remuneration other than base sclary is pensionable. Jonathan Wehster and David Smith are subject 1o the HMRC earnings cap.
Executive directors have death in service cover which provides o lump sum on death and the provision of a spouse’s pension.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

In accordance with the Combined Code, the Company policy on executive directors’ service agreements is that appointess o the board are offered
notice periods of ane year, following an initial twelve month service period.

A summary of the service agreements of current executive directors is as follows:

Date of

commencementi
of agreement Notice period
TE. Bonham [resigned 6.12.05) 2 December 1999 12 months
3P Websier 30 Ociober 1998 12 months
D.A.G. Smith 2 February 2000 12 months
1.5, Masson 15 January 2001 12 months

Directors’ service agreements do not provide for compensation for early termination.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ ARRANGEMENTS

The remuneration of the non-executive directors is set by the executive directors, based on established market levels, and consists of fees for services in
connecfion with board, board committee and other advisory meetings. They do not have service contrects, do net participate in the share incentive plan
and are not eligible for pension scheme membership.

Non-executive directors’ appoiniment terms expire as follows:
Term expires

LR. Kerr-Muir 22 April 2007
PT. Helps 31 July 2006
NJ. Forman Hardy 1 November 2006

M.). Barnes 31 October 2006




PERFORMANCE GRAPH OF HARDYS & HANSONS P.L.C.
The Company's total shareholder return, assuming dividends were reinvested, is shown compared with the relurn achieved by the FTSE All-Share Index.
There are practical difficulfies in establishing a consistent and meaningful sector comparator group and consequently the FTSE All Share Index was

selected as it represents a broad equity market index.

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

350

300
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/
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Total Return Index

== FTSE AllShore Totol
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50 1 1
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
AUDITED INFORMATION
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Value of contingent Cash value
Basic share options awards of benefits
salary/fee" Bonus and shares allocation in kind Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
J.R. Kerr-Muir 70 31 — — —_ — —_ — 70 31
RW.D. Hanson {retired 22.4.04) — 40 — — - —_— — 3 — 43
M.}, Barnes [appointed 1.11.04] 22 — -— — - — — —_ 22 —
P.T. Helps 24 14 — — — — 1 1 25 15
TE. Bonham (resigned 6.12.05) 161 153 - 52 15 3 10 10 186 218
N.1. Forman Hardy 23 12 — — - — - — 23 12
LP. Webster 138 131 — 46 13 3 13 14 164 194
D.A.G. Smith 126 1290 — 38 12 3 4 3 142 164
I.5. Masson 111 108 — 29 11 3 1 é 123 138

675 601 —_ 165 51 12 29 37 733 815

Total pension and death
in service confributions 61 64
Total emoluments 816 879

Note:

M The fee of £31,000 earned by James Kerr-Muir during the 2004 period differs from the amount paid of £25,000 which was the maximum
payable at that time in accordance with the Articles of Associafion,

A resolution was passed af the 2004 Annual General Meeting which ratified the fees payable under the terms of the contract between the
Company and the Chairman. A separate resolution is being proposed at the 2005 Annual General Meeling to change the Arficles of
Association in order to enable the directors to determine the fees payable to direciors, subject to an aggregate cap.
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PENSIONS
Transfer value at period Increase in Total accrued Transfer value of  Transfer value of  Increase in transter
end of increase in accrued pension pension at  cccrued pension ot accrued pension at value over

pension over pericd®  during the period™ period end® 1 QOctober 2004 30 September 2005 the period®
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
TE. Bonham (resigned 6.12.05) 16 4 35 226 279 46
1.P. Webster 11 3 16 &6 92 20
D.A.G. Smith 13 3 13 68 96 22
1.5, Masson 13 3 10 45 70 19
Notes:

B The increase in accrued pension during the peried includes a reduction fo allow for increases due to inflation.
12

B The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GNT1.

Normal retirement age is 65.
Details of the Company’s pension scheme, of which the execufive directors are members, are confained in Nole 25.

14
]

et

from the figures above.
M The pension has been calculated based on 45ths accrual.

The pension entitlement shown is that which would be payable on refirement based on service to the end of the financial period.

Members of the Scheme have the cption to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions. Any such contributions and the resuliing benefits are excluded

# The amount of director coniributions paid at 6.5% cf salary frem T November 2004 has been deduted from the transfer values.

The Brewery, Kimberley
Nottingham

J.R. Kerr-Muir

6 December 2005 Chairman of the Remuneration Committee



Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Shareholders of Hardys & Hansons p.l.c.

We have audited the financial statements of
Hardys & Hanscns p.l.c. for the 52 weeks
ended 30 September 2005 which comprise
tha Profit and Loss Account, Statement of
Tetal Recognised Guins and Losses,
Reconciliation of Sharehelders’ Funds,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flow ond
the related nales ¥ to 28. We have also
audited the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Repor! fhof is described os
having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a bady, in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state fo the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditors’ report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by low,
we do not accept or assume responsibility fo
anyone ather than the Company and the
Compony’s members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or

for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with cpplicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards are set aut in
the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Qur responsibility is fo audit the financial
statements ond the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, United Kingdom Auditing
Standards and the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority,

We report fo you our opinion s to wheiher
the financial statements give o true and fair
view and whether the Financial Statements

and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited cre properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act
1985. We also report to you if, in cur
opinion, the Directors’ Repert is not
consistent with the financial statements, if the
Company has net kept proper accounting
racords, it we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for
out avdil, or if information specified by low
or the Listing Rules regarding direciors’
remuneration and transactions with the
Company is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate
Governance Statement reflects the Compeny’s
compliance with the seven provisions of the
Combined Code specified for our review by
the Lising Rules, and we report if it does not.
We are not required to consider whether the
board’s statements on interncl control cover
all risks and conirols, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and contral
procedures.

We recd other information coniained in the
Annual Report, and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited financial
statements. This ofher information comprises
only the Directors’ Report, the Chairman'’s
Statement, the Managing Director's review,
the Corporate Governance Statement and the
unaudited part of the Directors’” Remunerafion
Report. We consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with
the financicl statements. Cur responsibilities
do not extend o any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with
United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by
the Auditing Practices Beard. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of

evidence relevant io the amounts and
disclosures in the financial skatements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited. It also includes an ossessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made
by the directors in the preparation of the
finoncial statements and of whether the
accounting pelicies are appropriate to the
Company’s circumstances, consistently
opplied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed cur cudit so as to
cbtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financial
statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are free
from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinicn we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of the
informaticn in the financicl statements and the

part of the Directors” Remuneratior Report to
be cudited.

OPINION

In our opinion:

¢ the financial statements give a trve and
fair view of the state of the Compeny’s
affairs as at 30 September 2005 and of
its profit for the period then ended; and

¢ the financial statements and the part of
the Direckors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985.

KPMG Audit PLC
Charterad
Accountants and
Registered Auditor

Nottingham

& December 2005 @I/
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Profit and Loss Account

for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2005

2005 2004
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover 3 81,514 76,166
Change in stocks of finished goods and
work-in-progress {155) o]
81,359 76,157
Raw materials,
consumables and duty (27,545) (26,139)
53,814 50,018
Staff costs 4 (19,368) 117,585}
Depreciation (3,174) {3,073}
Cther operating costs (16,942) (14,9209}
(39,484) (35,567)
Operating profit 14,330 14,451
Disposal of fixed assets 5 3,579 1,046
17,909 15,497
Income from fixed asset investments 23 138
Other inferest receivable 421 579
444 717
18,353 16,214
Interest payable 6 (13) (17)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 7 18,340 16,197
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8 (5,558) (4,635)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 12,782 11,562
Non-equity dividends Q@ {23) {23}
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders 12,759 11,539
Equity dividends 9 (4,838) 14,763)
Retained profit for the period 7,921 6,776
Earnings per share 11
Crdinary shares of 5p each 51.09p 46.20p
Deferred ordinary shares of 5p each 50.84p 45.95p
Adjusted earnings per shore 11
Ordinary shares of 5p each 40.58p 42.02p
Deferred ordinary shares of 5p each 40.33p 41.77p
Diluted basic ecrnings per share 11
Ordinary shares of 5p each 51.04p 46.20p
Deferred ordinary shares of 5p each 50.79p 45.95p
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 11
Crdinary shares of 5p each 40.54p 42.02p
Deferred ordinary shares of 5p each 40.29p 4177p

Alt activities are continuing.




Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2005

There were no recognised gains and losses in 2005 or 2004 other than those declared within the profit and loss occount.

Note of Historical Cost Profits

for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2005

2005 2004
£000 £000
Profit on ardinary activities before foxation 18,340 16,197
Realisction of property revaluation gains of prior periods 162 704
Difference between the historical cost depreciation charge and
the actual depreciation charge for the period calculated on the
revalued amount 30 30
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 18,532 16,931
Historical cost profif for the period retained after taxation and dividends 8,113 7,510
Reconciliation of Movements in
Total Shareholders’ Funds
for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2005
2005 2004
£000 £000
Profit for the financial period 12,759 11,539
Equity dividends {4,838) {4,763}
Credit in respect of share optiens granted under long term incentive plan 39 —
Credit in respact of shares allocated under employee share scheme 250 —
Shares purchased fo satisfy allocation under share incentive plan (250) —
Net additions to shareholders’ funds 7,960 6,776
Shareholders’ funds at 1 October 2004 120,196 113,420
Shareholders' funds ot 30 September 2005 128,156 120,196
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Balance Sheet

30 Septembar 2005

2005 2004
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 133,046 112,172
Investments 13 1,039 1,741
Shares in Hansons Limited tess amounts due 14 110 110
133,195 114,023
Current assets
Stacks 13 1,645 1,800
Debtors 16 5,543 5,221
Cash at bank and in hand 6,009 16,924
13,217 23,945
Creditors: Amounis falling due within one year 17 (15,933) (14,553)
Net current {liabilities)/assets (2.716) 2,392
Tetal assets less current liabilities 131,479 123,415
Creditors: Amounts falling due
after more than one year 18 {272) (200)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 (3,051} {3,019)
(3,323) (3,219}
Net assets 128,156 120,196
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 20 1,675 1,675
Equity reserves
Revaluation reserve 21 37,804 37,996
Profit and loss account 22 88,677 80,525
Total Shareholders’ funds 128,156 120,196

Approvad by the Board on 6 December 2005

W

J.R. Kerr-Muir

D.A.G.
Diractors




Cash Flow Statement

for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2005

2005 2004
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 26 17,837 16,584
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Income from fixed asset investments 23 138
Other interest received 421 57¢
Interest paid {13) {17)
Non-equity dividends paid (23) 23)
408 677
Taxation
Corporation tax paid (4,355) (4,547)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Poyments fo acquire fangible fixed assets {24,504) {16,718
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assefs 1,069 2,137
Purchase of own shares for employee share incentive plan (250) -—
Receipts from sales of investments 3,633 16
Decraase in loans fo customers and others 35 12
(20,017) (4,553}
Equity dividends paid {4,788) (4,663)
{Decrease)/increase in net funds {10,915) 3,498
Management of liguid resources
Decrease/(increase] in shorkterm bank deposits 11,629 (3,289
Increase in cash in the period 714 209
Reconciliation of net cash flow
to movement in net funds 27
Increase in cash in the period 714 209
Movement in cash (from)/fa liquid resources (11,629) 3,289
(Decrease)/increase in net funds (10,915) 3,498
Net funds at 1 Oclober 2004 16,924 13,426
Net funds at 30 September 2005 6,009 16,924

Liquid resources comprise term deposits of less than one yeor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLCIES

The financiol staterents have been orepared in accordunce with applicable accounting standards. The principal accounting policies
adopted are described below.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, medilied by the revaluation of properties and land,

and follow the form prescribed by the Companies Act 1985. They are mode up to the Friday nearest to 1 October. Periodically, this
resulls in a 53 week financial pericd.

Sales of properties and investments

Profits ond losses on the sale of properties and investments are reflected in the profit and loss account based on the net carrying
amount.

Consolidation

Ir the opinion of the boord, the subsidiary yndertcking, Hansons Limited, is not material for the purpose of the finoncial stotements
giving a true and fair view. Accordingly, consolidated accounts have nol been prepared as permitted by saction 229 of the Componies
Act 1985. These financial statements therefore present infermation chout Hordys & Hansons p.l.c. as an individual entity, Details about
Hansons Limited are given in note 14.

Valuations

Surpluses arising from professional valuafions of properties that are appliad 1o the financial statements are 1aken direct 1o the revaluation
raserve. Valuation surpluses reclised on sale are transferred fo the profit and loss account, Any deficit arising from the professional
valuation of properties is taken direct to the revaluation reserve o the extent that such deficit leaves the carrying value above hisforic
cost. Any further diminution in value of an individual property is charged to the profit and less account.

Tangible fixed assets

Prior 1o the adopfion of FRS 15 in the 2000 financial period, properties were revalued an a cyclical basis. Since the adoption of
FRS 15, the policy has been not to revalue properties. Consequently, the valuations have nct been updated. Details of the last
revaluation are given in note 12. Other fixed assets are stated at cost.

Tangible fixed assets are written off on o straightling basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
® Freehold lund is not depraciated.
® Freehold buildings are depreciated to their estimated residual values over periods up to 50 years.

e leasehold properties are depreciated fo their estimated residual values over the shortest of either 50 years or their estimated useful
fives or their remaining lease pericd.

o Computer equipment is deprecicled over 4 to 7 years.

@ Retail furniture, fixturas and equinment are depreciated over 4 to 10 years.
® Vehicles are depreciated over 4 10 5 years.

& Manufacturing plant and vessels are depreciated aver 10 to 20 years.

The carrying values of tongible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with FRS 11 if there are indications thot the
carrying value may not be fully recoverable. Any impairment in the velue of fixed assets below depreciated historical cost is charged 1o

the profit and loss account. Profiis and losses on disposal of fixed assets reflect the difference between net selling price and book value
at the date of disposal.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised and amartised, an a straightline basis, ever its estimated useful life up to a maximum of
20 years. Goodwill written off against reserves in previous periods has not been reinstafed.

Mdintenance and improvement of properties
Addifions 1o and mojor refurbishments of premises ore copitalised; miner copital projects are cherged against profits.

Stacks
Stocks are valued as follows:

(@) Raw materials and boughtin goods af cost.

(b} Work-in-progress and finished stocks at the cost of materials, duty (where applicable} and labour and overheads.

Investment in Own Shares
The investment in own shares represents shares held by the Hardys & Hansons Share Incentive Plan Trust, which are recorded ot cost as
a deduction frem shareholders” funds. The costs of administering the fund are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.




Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences which hove originated, but not reversed, ot the balance sheet date, except as
otherwise required by FRS 19, Timing differences represent accumulated differences between the Company’s taxable profit and its

financial profit and arise primarily from the difference between accelerated capital aliowances and depreciation. Deferred tox
liabilities and assets are not discounted.

LTIP

The long term incentive plon has been accounted for in accordance with UITF 17 {amended December 2003} so os to spread the
anficipated cost to the Company over the associated performance period. The cost is included within administration expenses.
Pensions

The Company operates o contributory defined benefit pension scheme which closed to new members with effect from 1 July 2003.
The scheme is funded af rates determined by professionally qualified actuaries every three years. These contributions are invested

separately from the Company’s assets, Contributions are charged against profiis so as to sprecd the cost of providing the expectad
benefits over the members’ anticipated service lives with the company.

The defined benefit pension scheme has been replaced by a defined centribution scheme which is ovailable to new employeas joining the

Company after 1 July 2003. The Company charges centributions it makes to the defined contribution scheme to the profit and loss account.

Leases
Operaling lease renfals are charged to the profit and loss account on o straightline basis over the period of the lease.

Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Company’s policy is 1o state all financial hicbilities at their nominal volue. Interest is deait with in the period in which it arises. For
further information, see note 28.

CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The disclosures required under the transitional peried of FRS 17 {Pensions) are included in note 25. Apart from this, there is no other
impact upon the financial statements from changes in accouniing policies.

International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS] become mandatory for the consclidated financial statements reported by all EU
lisied companies from 2005 onwards. Although the Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements, it intends o adopt
IFRS for the period ending 29 September 2006. Details of the impact of IFRS on the Company are provided in the Direciors’ Report.

TURNOVER
Turnover represents net sales to outside customers, rents recelvabie and commission, excluding value added tax. There were no

exports during the period. Turnover is atiributable to one activity. The turnover and operating profit generated from acquisitions in the
year were £3.4m and £0.2m respectivaly.

STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS

The average number of persons employed by the Company {including directors) during the pariod was as fallows:

2005 2004
Management, administration and sales 83 74
Production and disiribution 76 75
Managed houses 1,809 1,686
1,968 1,835

The above totdls include 1,571 {1,457) parttime staff, mainly employed at managed houses, who were approximately equivalent to
854 1780} fulltimers.

The aggregate payrolf costs of the employees were as follows:

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 17,366 15,869
Social security costs 1,236 1,034
Pension schemes 766 682
19,368 17,585

Details of directors’ remuneration and pension entilements are set out on pages 20 to 22,
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Notes to the Financial Statements coninued

5 DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS

2005 2004
£000 £000
Surplus on sale of properfies 613 1,046
Profit on sale of investments 2,966 —
3,579 1,046
6 INTEREST PAYABLE
2005 2004
£000 £000
QO deposits repayable within five years 5 4
Cn debenture stock 8 8
Other interest payable - 5
13 17
7 PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxafion is affributable to one activity and is stated
after (crediting) or charging the following:
2005 2004
£000 £000
Income from listed investments {23) (138)
Directors’ remuneration:
Fees 140 58
Managerial services 564 745
Pensicn and death in service contributions 61 64
Share incentive plan 12 12
Long-term incentive plan 39 _
816 879
Maintenance and improvement of properties 2,889 2,912
Fees payable fo the auditors: s auditors 50 46
for other services including taxation 18 11
Hire of plant, machinery and mator vehicles 172 164
3,945 4012
8 TAXATION
2005 2004
Analysis of charge for the period £000 £000
Current fox:
Corporation iax based on the profits 4,897 4,352
Under/{over) provision in prior year 468 {50
Utilisation of tox losses (331) —
Tofal current tax 5,034 4,302
Deferred tax:
Originaticn and reversal of timing differences 512 294
Under provision in prior year 12 39
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 5,558 4,635

Effective rate on profits 30.3% 28.6%




8 TAXATION Continued

2005 2004

£000 £000
Foctors affecting the tax charge for the periad:
Profit on ordinary activities befors taxation 18,340 16,197
Corporafion tax at standard rate of 30% 5,502 4,861
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tox purposes 173 137
Income from listed investments (7} (38)
Capital cllowances for period in excess of depreciation {373) {234)
Pension accruals {139) {60)
Usilisation of tax losses {331) Q)
Roflover relief on profit on property disposcls (184) [304)
Indexation allowance on profit on investment disposals {75} —
Adjustment fo tax charge for prior periods 468 {50)
Current tax charge for the period 3,033 4,302

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Based on current capital investment plans, the Company expects o be able to ¢laim capital allowances in excess of depreciction in
future periods at a slightly higher level than in the current pericd.

No provision has been made for deferred tox on gains recognised on past revaluations of property or on the sale of properties where
potentially taxable gains have been rolled over into replacement assets, Such tax would become paydble only if the property were
sold without it being possible to claim rollover religf. The total amount unprovided for is £3,857,000 (£4,181,000]. At present, it is
not enwvisaged that any tax will become poyoble in the foreseeable future.

The Company had capital losses brought forward of £1,097,000 which hove been ufilised in the period. No deferred tax assets had
been recognised in respect of these losses because it was unciear whether suitable gains would arise in the foreseeable future 1o
utilise these losses.

¢  DIVIDENDS
2005 2004 2005 2004
pence per share £000 £000
Dividends paid or proposed:
Non-equity
First preference shares 5.00 5.00 1 H
Second preference shares 6.00 6.00 12 12
23 23
Equity
Ordinary shares inferim 7.30 7.20 1,460 1,440
Ordinary shares proposed final 12.10 11.90 2,420 2,380
Deferred ordinary shares intarim ' 7.05 6.95 353 348
Deferred ordinary shares propesed final 12.10 11.90 605 595
4,838 4763
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Notes to the Financial Statements coninued

10 ADJUSTED PRCFIT BEFORE TAX

Adjusted profit before tax is presented fo demonsirate more clearly the underlying performance of the Company and is calculated as
follows:

2005 2004

£000 £000
Profit before tax f+ 13%) 18,340 16,197
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (3.579) (1,046)
Adjusted profin before tax {- 3% 14,761 15,153

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share ore calculated on 20 million ordinary shares and 5 million deferred crdinary shares, using the profit attributable

to the equity shareholders amounting to £12,75%9,000 (£11,539,000). The profits resolved 1o be distributed as ordinary dividends in
any year are applied first in the payment of 0.25 pence per share to the ordinory sharehalders and the balance rateably among the
holders of the ardinary and deferred ordinary shares.

Adjusted earnings per share is presented 1o demonsirate more clearly the underlying performance of the Company and is calevlated
as follews:

Profits Earnings per share
£000 pence
2005 2004 2005 2004
Ord. Def Ord. Ord. Def Ord.

Profit atiributable to equity shareholders
ond earnings per share 1+ 11%} 12,759 11,539 51.09 50.84 4620 . 45,95
Disposal of fixed asseis after tax {3.096) (1,046] (12.38) {12.38) {4.18} (4.18)
Tox charge in respect of prior
year disposals 468 — 1.87 1.87 — —_
Adjusted profits and
earnings per share (- 3%) 10,131 10,493 40.58 40.33 42.02 4177

Diluted earnings per share has been calculated on o similar basis taking account of o weighted average number of 20,020,471
ordinary shares and 5,000,000 deferred ordinary shares. The dilutive effect relatas fo opticns under the long ferm incentive plan.




12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Plant
Long Short machinery Containers
Freehcld leasehold leasehold and motor and
properties properties properties vehicles fixtures Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
1 October 2004 93,744 5,212 515 3,900 25,777 129,148
Additions 19,760 — — 584 4,160 24,504
Disposals 361} — — (35 1440) (836
30 September 2005 113,143 5212 515 4,449 29,497 152,816
At cost 59,913 5,202 515 4,449 29,497 99,576
At valuation 1994 53,230 10 — — — 53,240

113,143 5,212 515 4,449 29,497 152,816
Less depreciation
1 October 2004 1,061 400 320 2,261 12,934 16,976
Charge for the period 212 8 21 265 2,668 3,174
Disposals (14) — — (35) 1329) (380}
30 September 2005 1,257 408 341 2,491 15,273 19,770
Net book value
30 September 2005 111,886 4,804 174 1,958 14,224 133,046
1 October 2004 92,683 4812 195 1,639 12,843 112,172
The comparchle amounts determined under historical cost accounting are:
Cost 76,579 5,212 515 4,449 29,497 116,252
Depreciotion (816} (408) (3471} (2,491) {15,273} (19,329}
Net book value
30 September 2005 75,763 4,804 174 1,958 14,224 96,923
1 October 2004 56,328 4,812 195 1,639 12,843 75817

The 1994 valuation was carried out by Chesterfon International p.l.c. The bases of the valuation were, for the public houses and
development sites, opan market value in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuations and Guidance Notes of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyars. The 1994 valuation disclased @ surplus of £30.9m which was credited to the revaluation reserve.

The directors have undertaken a review of the valuation of all properties as at 30 September 2005. The purpose of the review is to
provide as a memorandum to the accounts the directors’ view of the current value of these assets.

The review valued properties on an individual fair maintainable trading basis, assuming sitting tenants, where applicable and
excluded fixtures ond fittings with o net book value of c.£10m. All valuations assumed existing use and therefore exclude any
potential clrernative use value.

Of the 258 licensed properties in the estale, 56 were subject 1o detailed professional valustion {50% by Hleurets, Chariered Surveyors
ond 50% by the Company’s estates manager, who is a qualified chartered surveyor). These properties constitute 29% of the licensed
estate by value, All other property volues were assessed by a committee comprised of two directors and the Company's estates manager.

The overall valuation of freehold and leaseholds properties as a result of the revaluation process is as follows:

Freehold Long leasehold  Short leasehold

properties properties properties Total

£000 2000 £000 £000

MNet book value at 30 September 2005 111,886 4,804 174 116,864
Revaluation 63,324 1,190 86 64,600
Revalued amount ot 30 September 2005 175,210 59948 260 181,464

Included within the additions of freehold property is the aequisition for £12.0m cash of a packege of five pubs together with
associuled lodges. The fair value of the tangible fixed assets equated to the amount paid and as a rasult there is no geedwill arising
on this acquisifion.

The opening cost and depreciation balances of plant, machinery and motor vehicles and containers and fixtures have bean adjusted
by £9.1m to take acceunt of ilems fully written off in previcus years. This has no elfect on the opering net book value.
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13 INVESTMENTS

Loans to
customers
Listed and others Tolal
£000 £000 £000
Cost 1 Oclober 2004 &67 1,074 1,741
Additions — 363 363
Dispesals and repayments (667) {398} {1,065
Cost 30 September 2005 - 1,039 1,039
Al 30 September 2005 the market value of listed investments, which are all dealt with on o recognised stock exchange, was £Nil
[£3,533,000). Al listed investments were disposed of during the period.
14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — HANSONS LIMITED (A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY)
2005 2004
£000 £000
Shares in Hansens Limited at cost 175 175
Bolance due to Hansons Limited (65) [63)
110 110
Nominal value of 4% Irredeemable Debenture Stock held in
Hardys & Hansons p..c. 132 132

The cggregate capital and reserves of Hansons Limited at 30 September 2005 was £175,000 {£175,000), and its profi for the

period ended 30 September 2005 was £nil (£nil).

Buring the period, Hansons Limited received £5,000 gross interest on the debenture stock from the Compony ond an equivalent

charge was made. This was the Company's only activity.

15 STOCKS
2005 2004
£000 £000
Raw materials 105 50
Consumable stores 83 118
Beer in process 49 120
Finished products 1,428 1,512
1,665 1,800
16 DEBTORS
2005 2004
£000 £000
Trade debtors 3,234 3187
Other debtors 562 698
Prepaymenis and accrued income 1,747 1,336
5,543 5221
17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALUNG DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2005 2004
£000 £000
Trade creditors 5,119 4,184
Taxotion 2,637 1,958
Other taxes and social security costs 1,952 1,810
Other crediters 1,710 2,241
Accruals 1,484 1,379
Ordinary shares proposed final dividend 2,420 2,380
Deferred ordinary shares proposed final dividend 605 595
Preference dividend 6 6
15,933 14,553




18 CREDITCRS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MCORE THAMN ONE YEAR

2005 2004
£000 £000
4% Irredeemable first morigage debenture stock secured or certain
preperties and by a general charge on the undertaking 200 200
Other creditors 72 —
272 200
19 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
2005 2004
£000 £000
Pensions — Balance 1 October 2004 492 592
Utlised during the year (492) (100}
Balance 30 Seplember 2005 — 492
Deferred taxation 3,051 2,527
3,051 3,019
Deferred taxation
Provided ot 30% in respect of:
Accelercted capital allowances 3,075 2,690
Shortterm timing differences (24) (163}
3,051 2,527
Movement in provision
Bolance 1 October 2004 2,527 2,194
Charge for the period 512 294
Under provision in pricr year 12 39
Balance 30 September 2005 3,051 2,527
20 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Allotted, called-up
2005 and and fully paid
2004 2005 2004
£000 £000 £000
Non-equity capital
5% First cumulative preference shares of £1 sach 225 225 225
6% Second cumulative preference shares of £1 each 250 200 200
Equily capiial
Ordinary shores of 5p each 1,000 1,600 1,000
Deferred ordinary shares of 5p each 250 250 250
1,725 1,675 1,675

The 5% first cumulative preference shareholders ore entitled to o fixed cumulafive preferential dividend ot that rate and, subject
thereto, the 6% second cumulative preference shareholders are entitled to a fixed cumulative preferential dividend ot that rate. These
shares have, respectively, a first and second entiflemant to amounts receivable on a winding-up not exceeding the amcunts paid up on
these shares plus any arrears of dividends. Voting rights attach o thesa shares if dividends are in arrears by more than one month
and six months respectively and In certain other circumstances.

After payment of the two cumulative preference dividends above, the profits resclved to be distributed as ordinary dividends in any
financial period are applied first in the payment of o non-cumulative 0.25 pence per share to the ordinary shareholders and the
balance rateably among the helders of the ordinary and deferred ordinary shares,

Each ordinary share carries one vote and sach deferred ordirary share carries four votes.
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21 REVALUATION RESERVE

2005 2004
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance ¥ QOcleber 2004 37,996 38,730
Profit and loss account: properties sold (162) {704)
Transter fo profit and loss cccount (30) (30)
(192) (734)
37.804 37,996
22 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
2005 2004
£000 £000
Balance 1 Cclober 2004 80,525 73,015
Retained profit for the period 7,921 6,776
Proposed transfers — Revaluation reserve 192 734
Credit in respect of share options granted under long term incentive plan 39 —
Credit in respect of shares dllecated under employee share scheme 250 —
Shares purchased to satisfy allocction under employee share scheme (250} —
88,677 80,525

At the year end the Hardys & Hansons Share Incentive Plan Trust held 37,134 ordinary shares which cost £250,000.

23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
HM Revenue and Customs have challenged the treatment of gains in respect of £2.9m of tax arising on the disposal of watershed
land in prior years. After taking professional advice, additional tax of £468,000 has been prudently provided for within the 2005
tax charge. The directors believe the parcels of land were business assets and as such entifled to the rollover relief claimed and will
continue fo robustly defend this position with the authorities.

2005 2004
£000 £000C
Copital commitments 991 50

24 GUARANTEES AND QTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 30 September 2005 the Company had annual cemmitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below:

2005 2004
land & Land &
buildings Other buildings Other
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year — — — —
In the second to fifth years inclusive - - — —
Over five years 184 — 184 —

184 — 184 —




25 PENSION SCHEMES

The Company operates o defined benefit scheme which was closed to new members on 1 July 2003 [os disclosed in note 1). The
assefs are held in separate insured funds. The ongoing scheme was volued by independent actuaries, Jardine Lloyd Thompsen, on
30 April 2004, using the projected unit credit method with a one year control period. This demonstrated o total market vatue of

scheme assets of £9.5m, representing a funding level of 87%.

The pension scheme and death in service charges are now separate. The total pension charge is £766,000 {£682,000), of which

£56,000 {£2,000} relates to contributions to the Compeny's defined contribution scheme.

2005 2004
£000 £000
Accrued contributions amounted o 80 53
The key essumptions used for the valuation for accounting under FRS 17 and the resulting funding level are as foliows:
2005 2004 2003
% p.a. % p.a. % p.a.
Inflation 2.8 2.8 2.5
Fensicn in payment increases 2.5 2.5 2.3
General pay increases 3.8 3.8 3.5
Rate used to discount scheme liabilities 5.1 5.8 55
Revaluation rate for deferred pensioners 2.8 2.8 2.5
Excluding death in service costs and administrative and auditing services, the regular cost is 13.4%,
The assets and liabilifies of the scheme were as follows:
2005 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000
Equities 7.819 5,369 4,372
Bonds 1,771 1,248 1,284
Property 1,235 200 902
Cash 1,030 1,411 514
With-profit arrangement 1,832 1,529 1,018
Market value of assets 13,687 10,457 8,090
Value of accrued liabilities (15,349} (12,060 (7,928)
Scheme [liabiliy)/asset (1,662) 11,603 162
Funding level 89% 87% 102%
The assumed long-term rate of return is:
2005 2004 2003
% p.a. % p.a % p.a
Equities 8.0 8.0 8.0
Bonds 5.0 55 5.0
Property 7.0 7.0 55
Cash 4.5 4.5 4.0
With-profit arrangement 5.5 3.0 3.0
If the above amounts had been recagnised in the financial statements, the Company’s net assets at 30 September 2005 would be as
follows:
2005 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000
Net assets excluding pension assel 128,156 120,196 113,420
Pension [liability)/asset {1,662} {1,603) 162
Deferred tax asset/(lickility) on pension (liability)/asset 499 481 [49)
Net assets including pension [liability)/asset 126,993 119,074 113,533
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25 PEMNSION SCHEMES Continved
Additionally, if the pension costs had been recognised in accordance with FRS 17, the following components of the pensions charge

would have been recognised in the profit and loss account and statement of total recognised geins und losses for the period ended
30 September 2005:

2005 2004
£000 £000 £000 £000

Analysis of amounts chargeable to profit and loss account:
Current service cost (681) [646)
Past service cast — (120)
Less employee contribulions 241 161

(440) (6035)
Financing:
Expected return on pension scheme assefs 707 532
Interest on expecied scheme liabilifies (715} 451
Net {costl/return (8) 81

{448) (524)
Analysis of amounts recognisable in the slatement of total recognised
gains and losses:
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 1,370 953
Experience gains/(losses) arising on scheme liabilities 262 (%C0)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present vaive of scheme liabilities (2,277} 2,121}
Total cctuarial [loss) recognised (645) (2,068]

The total movement in the Company's share of the scheme’s deficit during the period is made up as follows:

2005 2004
£000 £000

{Deficit)/surplus on the scheme at the beginning of the period (1,603) 162
Movement in period:
Current service cost (681) {646)
Confributions 1,275 988
Past service cost —_ 1120)
Other finance income (8} 81
Actuarial [loss) recognised above 1645) |2,068)
{Deficit) in scheme af the end of the period {1,662} (1,603}
The experience gains and losses for the year ended 30 September 2005 were as follows:

2005 2004 2003

£000 £000 £000
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Investment gain 1,370 253 227
Percentage of scheme assels 10% 9% 3%
Exparience gains and losses on scheme liabilifies:
Experience gain/(loss} 262 {200} (152)
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 2% 7%} {2%)
Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptions underlying
the present value of the scheme liabilities:
Amount [£°000) (2,277) (2,121} —
Percentage of scheme liabilities {15%) (18%) 0%

Total amount recognised in the statement of fotal recognised gains and losses:
Actuarial {less)/gain (645) 12,068) 75
Percenlage of the present value of scheme licbilities (8%} [17%}) 1%




26 RECONCIUATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

27

28

2005 2004

£000 £000

Operating profit 14,330 14,451

Depreciation charge 3,174 3,073

Decrecse/(increase} in stocks 135 748

(Increase) in debtors (322) {1,097}

Increase in creditors 231 233

Charge in respect of share opfions granted under the LTIP 39 —

Charge in respect of shares allocated under the employee share incentive plon 250 —

Net cash inflow from operating acfivities 17,837 16,584
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

At Cash At

1 Oct 2004 flows 30 Sept 2005

£000 £000 £000

Cash in hand, ot bank 915 714 1,629

Shortterm bank deposits 16,009 {11,629 4,380

Total 16,924 (10,915) 6,009

Shortterm deposits are included within cash at bank and in hand in the balance sheet.

DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s principal firencial instruments comprise debenture stock, preference shares, fixed asset investments and cash. Short-

term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures in this note.

The financial liabilities of the Company as at 30 September 2G05 were all denominated in pounds sterling and held at fixed rates as

disclosed in notes 18 and 20.

The comparisons by category of bock values and fair values of the Company’s financial liabilities were as follows:

2004

Book Fair Book Fair
value value value velue
£000 £000 £000 £000
4% Irredeemable first mortgage debenture stock 200 147 200 136
5% First cumulative preference shares 225 142 225 142
6% Second cumulative preference shares 200 182 200 182
625 471 625 460

The interest rate profile of the financicl assets of the Company were as follows:

Investments in inferest bearing assels

2005 2004
£000 £000
Held at fixed interest rates 4,380 16,009
Mon-interest earning amounis 1,629 215
Cash ot bank and in hand 6,009 16,924

Investments in interest bearing assets comprise shortterm deposits with a maturity date not exceeding one year.
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Five Year Record

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(53 weeks)

Profit and less account £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 81.5 76.2 70.9 64.8 543
Adjusted cperafing profit 14.3 14.5 137 12.3 10.2
Profit before taxation 18.3 16.2 18.3 16.7 10.0
Adiusted profit before taxation 14.8 15.2 14.1 12.5 10.8
Basic earnings per ordinary share 51.1p 46.2p 55.8p 3l.4p 27.2p
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share 40.6p 42 0p 39.2p 34.6p 30.2p
Dividends per share 19.4p 19.1p 18.1p 16.4p 14.8p
Adjusted operating profit/turnover 17.6% 19.0% 19.3% 19.0% 18.8%
Adjusted dividend cover {times} 2.1 2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0
Bolance sheet £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets 134.2 114.0 111.5 108.2 101.0
Working copital (excluding cash} (8.7} [7.5) (8.5) (6.4} (7.0
Net cash 6.0 16.9 13.4 5.0 35
Creditors more than 1 year and provisions {3.3) (3.2) (3.0} (2.8} {2.3)
Net assets 128.2 120.2 113.4 104.0 95.2
Net assets per equity share 511p 479 452p 414p 379p
Cash flow and invesiment £m £m £m €m €m
Cash inflow from operations 17.8 16.6 17.8 14.1 14.5
Interest, tax and dividends (8.8) (8.5) [7.5) 16.9) (6.0)
Fixed osset purchases {24.5) 6.7} 7.6 1.4 {20.6)
Fixed asset sales 1.1 2.1 5.6 8.0 0.5
Purchase of own shares for employee share incentive plan  (0.2) — — — —
Trade loons and investments 3.7 — 0.1 ‘ {0.3) {0.2)
(Decrease)/increase in funds (10.9) 3.5 8.4 1.5 {11.8)

Adjusted earnings per share, operating profit, taxation, profit before tox and dividend cover exclude the effect of exceptiona! items.
The 2001 figures have been restoied to comply with FRS 19 [Deferred Tax].

Net assets per equity share is based on the total 25,000,000 ordinary and deferred ordinary shares in issue.




Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 108th annucl general meeting of the Company will be held at the Nottingham Gateway Hotel, Nuthall
Road, Nottingham on Thursday, 2 February 2006 at 11:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as ordinary resolutions:

1. To receive and adopt the financial statements for the fifty-two weeks ended 30 September 2005 and the reporis of the directors, the
avditors and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report.

To approve the directers’ remuneration report for the financial peried ended 30 September 2005,
Ta declare final dividends on the ordinary shares and the deferred ordinary shares.
To re-elect P.T. Helps, who is retiring in accordance with the articles of association of the Company, as o director.

To re-elect N.J. Forman Hardy, who is retiring in accordance with the articles of association of the Company, as o director.

O T

To re-elect D.A.G. Smith, who is refiring in accordance with the articles of asscciation of the Company, as @ director.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, of which resolution 7 will be propesed as an erdinary resolution, and
resolufions 8, @ and 10 will be proposed as special resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
7. To reappoint KPMG Audit Ple as auditors and to authorise the directors to set their remuneration.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
8. That Article 87.1 of the Arficles of Association of the Company be deleted and replaced with the following:

“87 Payments to Directers (including expenses):

87.1 The directors shall be paid out of tunds of the Company by woy of fees for their services as directors such sums (it any) as the
directors may from time to time determine. Any fees pursuant to this Article 87.1 shall be exclusive of any salary, remuneration or other
amounts payable to executive directors pursuant to any contract ar arrangement between the Company and that director, provided that
in aggregate such fees payable to all of the directors shall not exceed the sum of £200,000 for each cccounting reference period of the
Company "

9. That the Ordinary Shares listed on the Official List are delisted and the Company be authorised and instructed to obtain edmission of
these shares fo trading on the Alternctive lavestment Market,

10. That the Company {or a subsidiary of it} be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to make purchases {whether market
or off market) of all or any of the outstanding irredeemable first marigage debenture stock of the company {"Stock”) provided that the
maximum prica which may be paid for £1 nominal of Stock purchased is £1 and the authority hereby granted shall expire of the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the company in 2011, provided that a contract may be made before the expiry which will
of may be executed wholly or partly thereclter and o purchase of Stock may be made in pursuance of such contract,

Registered Office By Order of the Board
The Brewery
Kimberley
Nettingham

NG16 2NS

21 December 2005

D/A.G. SMITH
Secretary

Mote: Ary member entitled to attend and vole of the mesting is entitied to appeint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote on his
or her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be effective, forms of proxy must be lodged ot the registered office of the Company’s Registrars, Capita Registrars, not less than
48 hours before the time fixed for the mesting.
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Shareholder Information

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2006

Annual General Meeting 2 February
Payment of final dividend for 2004 /2005 & March
Announcement of interim results and dividend for

2005/2006 and publication of Interim Stotement Lote May
Payment of interim dividend for 2005,/2006 Early August

Fult year preliminory announcement of results and
proposed fina! dividend for 2005/2006 Early December

REGISTERED OFFICE

The Brewery, Kimberley, Nofingham, NG1& 2NS
Registered in Engiand, company regisiration number: 52412
Telephone 0115 938 3611

REGISTRARS

Capita Registrars
The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU

TRUSTEES FOR DEBENTURE STOCKHOLDERS

LUoyds TSB Private Banking Lid
UK Tryst Cenitre, The Clock House, 22/26 Ock Street, Abingdon, Oxford, OX14 55w

CAPITAL GAINS TAX
Official Stock Exchange prices;

31 March 1982

5p Ordinary shares £0.726
£1 5% First preterence shares £0.325
£1 6% Second preference shares £0.345
£100 4% First morigage debenture stock £26.25

Annual General Meeting

The 108th annual general meeting of Hardys & Hansons p.l.c. will be held at the Nottingham Gateway Hotel, Nuthall Road, Nottingham on
Thursday, 2 February 2006 ot 11.30 a.m.




Hardys & Hansons Estate

CHESHIRE

Governor’s House, Cheadle Hulme
King’s Ransom, Sale
Waterside, Warrington {PTI)

DERBYSHIRE

Anglers Arms, Sponden
Bateman Arms, Stanley Common
Bell Inn, Cromford

Black Horse, Somercotes
Black Swan, Crich

Blacks Head, Wirksworth
Blue Bell, South Normanton
Blue Bell, Tissington

Boat House, Matlock
Bonnie Prince, Chellaston
Boythorpe Inn, Chesterfield
Brickmaokers Arms, Newton Solney
Bridge Inn, Calver

Bridge Inn, Cotmanhay
Britannia Inn, Kegworth
Bulls Head, llkeston

Bulls Head, Openwoodgate
Butchers Arms, Heanor
Buichers Arms, Ockerthorpe
Canal Inn, Bulibridge

Cat & Fiddle, lkeston
Cheshire Cheese, Buxton
Church Inn, Darley Dale
Clitt inn, Crich

Coach & Horses, toscoe
Crickelers, Kilburn

Cross Keys, Heanor

Crown & Arrows, Derby
Derwent Hotel, Whatstandwell
Devonshire Arms, Fairfield
Duke of Clarence, Derby
Duke of Wellington, Matlock
Farmyard Inn, Youlgreave
Foresters Arms, Scropton
French Horn, Cadnar
Furnace Inn, Derby
Genercus Brifon, Ripley
George Hotel, Derby
George Hotel, Tidaswell
George Inn, Lower Hartshay
Greyhound Hotel, Cromford
Greuse Inn, Darley Dale

Hill Top Inn, Belper

Homesford Cottage, Whalstondwell

Hop Flower, Inkersalf

Jovigl Dutchman, Crich
Laburnum Inn, Matlock

Live & Let Live, llkeston
Market Hotel, Heanor
Masons Arms, Brampton
Miners Arms, llkeston
Moulders Arms, Riddings
Mundy Arms, Marlpool
MNavigation, Cverseal

New Inn, Miltord

New Inn, Riddings

Old Black Horse, Mapperley
Paddock, Derby

Pear Tree Inn, Ripley

Plough Inn, Ashbourne
Queens Head, litle Eaton
Railway Holel, Buxion
Raitway Hotel, Matlock

Red Lion, Fritchley

Red Lion, Riddings

Robin Hood, Alfreton

Rose & Crown, Barlborough
Royal Forester, Buxton

Royal Oak, Tansley

Royal Tiger, Somercotes
Saracens Head, Shirley
Seven Wells, Etwall
Silver Ghost, Alvaston

Sir John Warren, llkeston
Spinning Whee!, Chaddesden
Sun Inn, Derby

Swan & Salmon, Derby
Three Horse Shees, likeston
Three Horse Shoes, Wessington

Three Stags Heads, Darley Bridge

Welbeck Inn, Chestertield
Whaatsheaf Hotel, Tibshelf
White Hart, Bargate
White Hart, Bradwell
White Swan, Bolsover
Woodman, Ripley

Yarn Spinner, Spendon

GREATER MANCHESTER
John Gilbert, Worsley

LANCASHIRE

inn on the Wharf, Burnley
Lea Gate, Preston (PTI)
Priory Wood, Wigan {PTl}
Royal Qak, Wirral {PTI}
Thatch & Thistle, Nelson
Waterside Inn, Leigh

LEICESTERSHIRE

Britannia Inn, Shepshed
Broadway Hotel, Leicester

Counting House, Leicester
Crown & Cushion, leughborough
Dew Drop, Hathern

Hat & Beaver, leicester

Kings Arms, Scalford

Old Pack Horse, Loughborough
Ox Lea, Loughberough

LINCOLNSHIRE

Cherry Tree, Ingoldmelis
Fieece Inn, Burgh-e-Marsh
Fox & Hounds, Oid Somerby
Fox Inn, Kirton

Golden Lion, Boslon

Jolly Scotchman, Sleaford
Lincelnshire Poacher, Louth
Lumley Hotel, Skegness
Manvers Arms, lincaln
Peacock Inn, Lincoln

Plough Inn, Tetney

Ship Inn, Ingoldmells
Steamhammer Inn, Lincoln
White Bull, Coningsby
White Hart, Spilshy

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE
'Qck ‘'n’ Dough, Wellingborough

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

Angel Inn, Blyth

Badger Box, Kirkby-in-Ashfield
Beacon, Aspley

Beechdule, Bilborough

Beekeeper, Chilwell

Bell lnn, Nottingham
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Black Swan, Edwinstowe
Black Swan, Mansfield

Boat Inn, Retford

Broad Oak, Streflley
Bromley Arms, Fiskerfon
Carnarven Arms, Teversal
Carpenters Arms, Boughion
Cemmercial Inn, Beeston
Corn Mill, Chilwell
Cricketers Rest, Kimberley
Cross Keys, Epperstone
Crown & Anchor, Mansfield
Crown Inn, Beesion

Crown Inn, Selston
Crusader, Clifton

Doy & Toppar, Lenton

Druids Tovern, Arnold

Duke of Sussex, Fulwood
Durham Cx, Brinsley

Flying Bedstead, Hucknall
Foresters Arms, Newthorpe
Fox & Hounds, Blidworth
Gardeners Inn, Awsworth
Gate Inn, Awsworth

Gate Inn, Kimberlay

Gate Inn, Westwood

Golden Guinea, Kimberley
Goose, Gamston

Greasley Casfle, Eastwood
Great Northern, Langley Mill
Great Northern Inn, Newark
Griffin Inn, Plumtree
Half Crown, Long Ecton
Happy Man, Stapleford

Hare & Hounds, Warsop
Harrier, Hucknaf!
Harrington Arms, Sawley
Horse & Groom, Moorgreen
Jug & Glass, Nether Langwith
King & Miller, Suton-in-Ashfield
Lady Bay, West Bridgford
Larks Nest, Nuthall

Lion & Dragon, long Eoton
Lion Revived, Bulwell

lord Clyde, Kimberley

Lord Nelson, Basford

Lord Nelson, Sneinton

Lord Raglan, Newthorpe

Lurcher, Rainworth

Magna Charta, Lowdham
Man in Space, Eastwood
Man of Iron, Stapleford
Meadow Covert, Edwalton
tMoon & Stars, Eostwood

Maat House, Bingham

Nabb [nn, Hucknall

Negs Head, Pleasley

Nogs Head, Woodborough
Nags Head & Plough, Stapleferd
Nelson & Railway, Kimberley
Navile Arms, Kinoulton

New Inn, Long Eaton

New White Bull, Giltbrook
Nurseryman, Beeston

Qld Volunteer, Caytharpe
Palmerston Arms, Eastwood
Park Tavern, Cinderhill

Peacock, Clifion

Plainsman, Mapperley
Plough & Harrow, Hucknall
Portlang Arms, Nottingham
Queen Adelaide, Kimberley
Queens Head, Kimberley
Quueens Hotel, long Eaton

Ram Inn, Newtharpe

Red Gats, Mansfield

Red Lion, Bottesford

Red Lion, Sandiacre

Robin Hood, Brinsley

Rose Grower, Beeston

Royat Oak, Watnall

Saracens Head, Nottingham
Sherwood Manor, Sherwood
Sherwood Ranger, Rovenshead
Sir Charles Napier, Langley Mill
Snipe, Sufton-in-Ashfield
Sun Inn, Eastwood

Sun inn, Pinxion

Test Match Hotel, West Bridgford
Three Horse Shoes, Pinxton
Three Ponds, Nuthall

Tree Tops, Mapperley
Victorio Inn, Long Eaton
Waggon & Horses, Brinsley
Waggen & Horses, Kirkby-in-Ashfield
Wellingtor: Inn, Eastwood
Wheelhouse, Wollaton

White Cow, llkeston
White Hart, Lenton

‘White Harl, Notinghom
White Lion, Bramcote

Wild Crehid, Kirkby-in-Ashfield
Windsor Castle, Carlton

Ye Olde Trip to Jerusalem, Nottingham

Yew Tree Inn, Brinsley

SHROPSHIRE
Twa Henrys, Shrewsbury

STAFFORDSHIRE

Swan Hotel, Burton upon Trent

WARWICKSHIRE

Farm House, Coventry

WEST MIDLANDS

Oldswinford, Stourbridge
Wylde Green, Sution Coldfield

YORKSHIRE

Albart Inn, Dernall

Bull & Badger, Killamarsh
Chaortist, Skelmanthorpe
Chestnut Tree, Barnsley
Gypsy Queen, Sheffield
Hay Nook, Maltby

High Park, Huddersfield
Holmfield Arms, Wakefield (PTI)
Lord Darcy, Leeds

Lord Nelsen, Sheffield

Nags Head, Loxley

Old Hall Inn, Great Houghton
Old Heavygate Ian, Sheffield
Qutpost, Barnsley

Ring O'Bells, Silkstone

Rose & Crown, Penistone
Shepley Spitfire, Totley

Ship Inn, Sheffieid

Sir Colin Compbell, Rotherham
Springfield Tavern, Sheffield
Travellers Rest, Brookhouse
Travellars Rest, Tickhill

Managed Houses with substantial
food offers are shown in bold

PTI = Premier Travel Inn attached
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The Brewery, Kimberley
Nottingham, NG16 2iNS
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